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1

P R O C E E D I N G S

2

* * *

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Good morning.

Welcome

4

to the public hearing of the Pennsylvania House State

5

Government Committee on Election Oversight.

6

will consist of two panels.

7

State Government Committee to provide an update on the

8

Election Law Advisory Board.

9

Department of State to address election issues as a primer

10

This hearing

Panel 1 will be the Joint

And Panel 2 will be

to the 2020 Primary Election.

11

Around 10:30 p.m. last night, we also received

12

written testimony from CCAP.

That has been provided to

13

Members.

14

Committee to get that out to Members that late.

Excellent job by both Executive Directors of the

15

Acting Chairman Webster, any opening comments?

16

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

Just welcome

17

and glad to be here today.

18

professionalism and support w e ’re about to experience.

19

bet.

20

Thank you for the

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

You

We have Members and

21

testifiers in attendance virtually, as well as, the public

22

viewing via livestream.

23

if either of these platforms experiences technical

24

difficulties, we will pause the meeting in order to correct

25

the issues.

Due to Sunshine Law requirements,

4
1

Would the Members participating virtually please

2

mute your microphone.

3

hear you.

4

please use the raised hand function.

5

recognized, but prior to speaking, please turn on your

6

camera and unmute your microphone.

7

your question, please re-mute your microphone.

If you want to be recognized for comments,
After being

After you’ve completed

Member introduction, we'll start with Committee

8
9

Please know when you speak, we all

Members in the room.

For Members attending virtually, I

10

will call on you one-by-one to give your introductions.

11

We'll start far left.

12

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

13

morning.

14

in Montgomery County.

15

I'm Joe Webster.

Good

I represent the 150th District

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Good morning, everyone.

16

I'm Russ Diamond.

17

County and I am the Speaker's designee to the Election Law

18

Advisory Board.

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

I represent the 102nd District in Lebanon

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

State Representative

Seth Grove, 196th District, York County.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Representative Dawn

Keefer, 92nd District, York and Cumberland Counties.
REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Representative Eric

Nelson, 57th District, West Moreland County.
REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

Brett Miller, 41st

5
1

District, Lancaster County.

2

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

3

Lebanon County.

4

to my district number.

5

The only representative who’s age is equal

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6

Mackenzie?

7

screen, my apologies.

Representative

You know what, I was looking at the wrong
Representative Lewis?

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

8
9

Frank Ryan, 101st District,

Good morning, Chairman,

Committee Members, and all attendees, Representative Andrew

10

Lewis from the 105th District in gorgeous Dauphin County.

11

Good to be with you this morning.

12

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

13

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

14

68th Legislative District,

15

part of Bradford County.

Representative Owlett?
Representative Owlett,

[inaudible], part of Potter and
Thank you.

16

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

17

REPRESENTATIVE STAATS:

18

and those joining us today.

19

145th District in Bucks County.

Representative Staats?
Good morning, Chairman

Craig Staats representing the

20

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

21

REPRESENTATIVE HOWARD:

22

from the 167th District in Chester County.

23
24
25

Representative Howard?
Hi.

It’s Kristine Howard

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Representative

REPRESENTATIVE WHEELAND:

Good morning, everyone.

Wheeland?

6
1

Representative Jeff Wheeland,

2

County.

83rd District, Lycoming

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

4

REPRESENTATIVE SCHMITT:

Representative Schmitt?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

5

Good morning, everyone.

6

here from the 79th Legislative District in Blair County.

State Representative Lou Schmitt

7

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

8

REPRESENTATIVE MADDEN:

9
10

Representative Madden?
Good morning, everyone.

Representative Madden representing the 115th Legislative
District in Monroe County.

11

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

12

REPRESENTATIVE DOWLING:

Representative Dowling?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman

13

and good morning to everyone.

14

Dowling from the 51st Legislative District in Fayette and

15

Somerset Counties.

I ’m Representative Matthew

16

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

17

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

18
19

Representative Sanchez?
Good morning, all.

I ’m

Ben Sanchez representing part of Montgomery County.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Excellent.

And did I

20

miss anybody?

21

again, for Members participating virtually, when we get to

22

the question section, just use the raised hand function.

23

Going once, going twice?

All right.

And

With that, w e ’ll turn to our first panel, the

24

Joint State Government Committee -- Commission, thank you,

25

Commission.

We have the Executive Director, Glenn Pasewicz

7
1

and Yvonne Hursh, Counsel.

2

and raise your right hands, we'll swear you in.

If you could both quickly stand

3
4

[The witnesses were sworn.]

5
6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you, both.

7

don’t know who’s going first.

8

turn it over to Glenn, the floor is yours, sir.

9

MR. PASEWICZ:

Glenn?

All right.

And I

W e ’ll

So good morning, Chairman Grove

10

and Members of the Committee and thank you for inviting us

11

here today to talk about the Election Law Advisory Board

12

and the progress and the process that w e ’re going through,

13

you know, as we work through this project.

14

I ’m Glenn Pasewicz.

I ’m the Executive Director

15

of Joint State.

16

Assembly’s non-partisan, public policy, and statutory

17

research agency.

18

providing staff support to the Election Law Advisory Board.

19

And just real quick, w e ’re the General

And Act 12 assigned us the task of

When we got this assignment, and we do lots of

20

reports on a ton of different topics, right?

So we look

21

back over the history of, you know, of our work to see if

22

we had -- what we had done before on Election Law.

23

there was a report in 1984 that was a proposed codification

24

of the Election Law Advisory -- or for Election Laws.

25

I think it was 108 -- the codification was about 186 pages

And

And

8
1
2

long.
Then in 2000, there was a Task Force and Advisory

3

Committee report on a proposal to change the primary

4

Election Day to September.

5

that didn’t go anywhere.

6

Advisory Committee endorsed that idea.

7

And I think as you can see,
Neither the Task Force nor the

More recently, I want to say it was maybe 2015,

8

2016, we did a report on cyber security for the

9

Commonwealth.

10
11

And one of the topics that came out of that

was election security.
So in 2017, there was a report on election

12

technology and looking at the security issues around that.

13

And one of the recommendations that came out of that report

14

was the creation of an entity that is similar to what we

15

have now with the Election Law Advisory Board.

16

So the Act 12 was passed.

You know, we had the

17

COVID situation.

18

required to do a report at the end of every fiscal year.

19

And for that first fiscal year, the Election Law, the Board

20

hadn’t been fully appointed yet.

21

sort of a quick report that, you know, sort of did a

22

history of Election Law, looked at some of the issues that

23

were, you know, coming up that we thought might be

24

prominent issues for the Board to study.

25

The reports are due -- they’re -- w e ’re

So our staff put together

And then that fall, after that, so that would be

9
1

after that June, the Board started meeting virtually.

2

started, you know, getting into the issues and into the

3

topics, and it's being going since then.

4

We

I just want to say that I think despite the

5

controversial topics that are going on, the staff has done

6

a really good job of threading through and facilitating the

7

meetings.

8

been collegial.

9

discussions, but it has not been rancorous debate.

And the Board Members themselves have really
We haven't had, you know, we've had

10

not been one side versus the other.

11

working towards the common goal, let's try to make

12

everything work better.

13

It has

People are really

So with that, I'll turn it over to Yvonne and,

14

you know, obviously, we're here to answer questions.

15

think it's going really well so far and we have a great

16

report that's going to be out at the end of June.

17
18

MS. HURSH:
again are you?

19

But I

You're finding out that I'm short

No, it's fine.

Good morning, Chairman Grove.

And I'm usually

20

the loudest person in the room, so.

21

want to acknowledge Russ Diamond who is on the Advisory

22

Board and has been a faithful meeting attendee, and

23

contributor, and also likes my jokes, so it's working well,

24

so.

25

And Panel Members, I

And the -- my written testimony really tells you

10
1

what w e ’ve been up to, what w e ’ve been looking at.

2

agree with Glenn that people have been very -- it’s not

3

that w e ’re not aware of the views of different people on

4

the Board, but they have been very congenial with each

5

other, trying to work towards consensus, trying to work

6

towards solutions that will work for all of Pennsylvania.

7

And that’s really our driving force whenever we

8

work with a group is it’s kind of like w e ’ve done well if

9

nobody wins because everybody wins.

I would

Because one extreme

10

position or another extreme position is not going to

11

dominate.

12

recommendations.

13

consensus that will address the problems w e ’re looking at

14

in a way that may not be perfect in one person’s eye, but

15

is what’s best for the people of the Commonwealth.

16

So honestly, I would just like to answer

The discourse is not going to dominate our
What we will come out with will be a

17

questions.

18

reading speaker, so my testimony you guys have had for a

19

few days, so I ’m open to questions.

20
21
22

I ’m a much more extemporaneous speak than a

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Questions, Members?

I ’ll go for the first one.
The Commission was taxed with staffing the ELAB,

23

Election Law Advisory Board under Act 12 of 2020.

As we

24

just passed the two year mark since the Board was

25

established, could you just provide us with an overview how

11
1

the Joint State Government has approached this new duty and

2

significant issues it has faced in doing so?

3

MS. HURSH:

We -- well, as Glenn said, the very

4

first initial hurdle was pulling everybody together.

5

a large group.

6

gubernatorial appointees and including representatives from

7

every congressional district.

8

people lined up, confirmed, and the group organized was

9

probably the first hurdle from that perspective.

10

It’s

There are legislative appointees and

So getting all of those

From our perspective, we approached this like any

11

other study.

12

fact that this is 99 percent legal, I volunteered to be the

13

project manager on this project as the most experienced

14

attorney on the Commission’s staff.

15

people that depending on the nature of the study w e ’re

16

doing, w e ’ll have them.

17

A project manager is assigned.

But you’ve got me.

Given the

We also have policy

I started at Joint State in

18

1982 as a law clerk.

19

maternity leave, but otherwise, I have been around the

20

Joint coming up on 25 years of service, but really a 40

21

year lineal period of time.

22

memory to look back at that ’84 code and say, oh, that’s

23

what we were doing then and stuff like that.

24
25

In the 90’s, I had a 15 year

So I have the institutional

So and then we assigned two other attorneys to
the project.

And that’s our typical method of approaching

12
1

things.

2

Glenn explained what we did in the first year

3

which was basically try to identify hot topics, try to look

4

through the election code to see if there were issues that

5

leapt out at us that we thought were important and we did a

6

-- we gathered a list of pending legislation to see where

7

you and your fellows were thinking on the topic.

8
9

We -- but then once we were organized and then
together, we started with -- we decided to do an internal

10

poll of the Members to identify what they felt were the

11

priority issues.
Right now, we have five different directives in

12
13

Act 12, but we really felt the situation in the 2020

14

elections and the issues that arose between with mail-in

15

ballots, that we really needed, even though we might

16

normally have gone, okay, this section is first in the

17

statute.

18

highlight those issues that needed a more immediate

19

response.

20

This is where we are.

We really felt we had to

So we polled our Members and they -- we asked

21

them to list their top three priorities to start out with.

22

We pulled that altogether, kind of prioritized those items,

23

and then we made the decision to categorize them into

24

groups.

25

assigned different topic areas in various aspects of those

And so we created five workgroups which were

13
1
2

priority issues that fell into that particular area.
We had the subgroups meeting via Zoom fairly

3

frequently.

4

Zoom or Teams, but everybody would show up.

5

participated.

6

interested and focused the Members of the Board are.

7

is something they really care about.

8

lining their resumes.

9

something for the Commonwealth.

10

Again, I am more of an in-person person than a
Everybody

I think I can’t say enough about how
This

They’re not just

They are there to try to accomplish

So we went through the workgroups.

Oh, the end

11

of last year, we kind of came to a halt with the

12

workgroups, so that we could prepare proposals for the

13

whole Board to look at, approve, so that we could move

14

forward drafting legislation or recommendations that we

15

could then put out in our June report.

16

takes time to make that -- accomplish that.

17

And that is a -- it

So we are going to resume with the workgroups

18

with other issues once this report comes out, but the

19

workgroups themselves, we looked at the individual issues

20

that were raised.

21

been proposed by national organizations, State

22

organizations, individual members of General Assembly, and

23

tried to present the pros and cons of each of those issues.

24

And we did that in workgroup papers that I call them

25

research reports because w e ’re not recommending specific

We looked at various solutions that had

14
1

things, w e ’re just saying here’s your options to decide

2

where to go with it.

3

And we met with the entire Board a few weeks ago

4

-- no, okay, recently.

5

did discuss and come to some decisions and preliminary

6

approval of certain recommendations.

7

And we went through our list and we

W e ’re at the point right now, where me and my

8

staff are filling in the holes writing that legislation,

9

writing those recommendations, so that we can bring them

10

back to the Board at the of May, get their final approval,

11

any edits, any -- you know, anybody comes in and says that

12

is not what I wanted, fix it or whatever, so that we can do

13

our final report then.

14

I will say one of the big areas that we are being

15

careful with, I think that’s the best word, is the whole

16

concept of mail-in ballots.

17

We -- last year, the report we released, we had

18

one legislative recommendation and that was to allow pre

19

canvassing by county election officials.

20

recommended a 14 day period, maximum 14 day period at the

21

discretion of the county.

22

any extra time, fine, but if they did, fine.

23

We had

If they didn’t feel they needed

We -- and I think that’s something that the Board

24

would still, regardless of what happens with mail-in

25

ballots at the end of the day, right now, we still have

15
1

them and counties still have that issue of how to deal with

2

mail-in ballots.

3

Now, I think -- I don’t want to put words in

4

their mouth, but I think our Department of State friends

5

could say that we don’t look to have as many mail-in

6

ballots coming now as we did in Fall 2020.

7

might alleviate some of that concern for the county

8

officials.

9

And that that

But so that is one w e ’re still advocating.
We have a number of potential recommendations for

10

the Board to review around mail-in ballots, how you apply

11

for them, how you get them, what do you do with drop boxes,

12

all kinds of things, but at this point, w e ’re taking a wait

13

and see attitude until the Pennsylvania Supreme Court rules

14

in the McLinko case.

15

In part, because we have a lot to do with this

16

Board and I -- and it was kind of my call, although I

17

convinced everybody else on the Board that it was a good

18

idea, is to pause and see how that shakes out a little bit,

19

so we don’t expend a huge amount of energy proposing

20

legislative changes that may not accomplish anything and

21

may end up being moot.

22

So I don’t see us prolonging it.

I ’m -- I think

23

w e ’ll come back and w e ’ll look at it and w e ’ll revise it

24

some more in the fall looking to see how things come out

25

with that case, so.

And there are other things there, I

16
1

believe some other legislation that wants to repeal mail-in

2

ballots out there.

3

there.

4

So w e ’re kind of taking a wait and see

W e ’re also kind of taking a wait and see, but in

5

a I like to think more positive realm with the SURE

6

Modernization Project.

7

One of our directives is to look at voting

8

technology and our Board Members do have some thoughts on

9

how that can and should be improved.

But we also know,

10

especially since we have a Department of State

11

Representative on the Board, that they are in the process

12

of implementing that modernization project right now.
So our, again, that’s something we want to

13
14

revisit in the fall.

How does this roll out this spring?

15

How has that worked?

How is that going?

There are a couple aspects of the voter

16
17

registration that we did -- again, we have to fill in the

18

fine details, but to authorize the Department of State to

19

look at national databases, especially when it comes to

20

trying to maintain your voter lists with respect to

21

deceased voters.

22

and that there are some potential solutions for that, but

23

we haven’t -- it will be one of our recommendations, but we

24

haven’t fleshed it out yet.

25

are.

And that that’s a problem in Pennsylvania

So I think that’s where we

17
1
2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

you are looking at legislative recommendations -

3

MS. HURSH:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5

Oh, yes.
-- drafting and that

kind of stuff?

6

MS. HURSH:

7

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

8

MS. HURSH:

9

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

10

And to clear, be clear,

Oh, yes.
Okay.

Oh, yes, indeed.

MR. PASEWICZ:

Yeah.

That would be helpful.

And I just want to add,

11

we're not leaving things out.

12

somebody brings up that everybody says oh, that's -- we're

13

just -- we can't work with them, we're not going to.

14

If there's some idea that

But if there isn't a sense that well, we're going

15

to go this way with the recommendation, but this group of

16

people, these other people, they're saying well, we don't

17

agree with that, we'll include that in the report.

18

not leaving things out.

19

in a way, we are composing the rebuttal report as, you

20

know, parts of the full report.

21

represented.

22

explained, the different positions.

It will be presented in there, so

It's all going to be

It's all going to be included in there and

23

MS. HURSH:

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

We're

Yeah.
Okay.

And as far as

timing for we'll say mail-in ballot issues, the Supreme

18
1

Court comes back as soon as the primary is done and makes a

2

ruling, will that give you enough time to complete that

3

work for the May or -

4

MS. HURSH:

5

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6

MS. HURSH:

7

I -- highly doubtful.
Okay.

Although we could, potentially,

complete the report over the summer and into the fall.

8

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MS. HURSH:

Okay.

And possibly release an interim

10

report with recommendations.

11

report then end of every June, but there’s nothing that

12

says we couldn’t do an interim report that would just

13

address those issues because w e ’ve done a lot with it.

I mean, w e ’re mandated to

14

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

15

MS. HURSH:

Okay.

It’s just been a matter of okay,

16

where do we go from here.

17

May and we have a clear decision one way or the other,

18

w e ’ll move forward with that.

So if they come back the end of

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

20

MS. HURSH:

Okay.

And that’s kind of where I think the

21

meeting the other week is where we kind of left it that if

22

we need to, we can do an interim report in the fall, once

23

we have a chance to nail that down a little bit more.

24
25

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:
question, Representative Staats?

Okay.

Perfect.

He will be virtual.

Next

19
1
2

REPRESENTATIVE STAATS:
Grove.

Thank you, Chairman

And again, good morning, everyone.

3

My question is that this Committee conducted

4

hearings to get a wide understanding of election

5

administration practices in Pennsylvania and across the

6

nation.

7

So has the Election Law Advisory Board pursued

8

its duty to identify best practices to ensure integrity and

9

efficiency in the electoral process in the Commonwealth?

10

MS. HURSH:

We have been looking, particular, in

11

particular, to the National Conference of State Legislators

12

to identify what different states are doing with these

13

topics, trying to identify best practices in the individual

14

areas that w e ’re looking at.

15

but that’s the one that pops to mind right now, but yes.

16

NCSL is not our only source,

And with the hearings that this Committee did

17

quite some time ago now, we shared Chairman Grove’s report

18

with all the ELAB members, we call it ELAB.

19

acronyms.

20

w e ’ve look at that as we look at different topics to see

21

what was proposed in those hearings.

22

House Bill 1300 and House Bill 1800.

23

I do, anyway.

We like

With all the members, so.

And

What was proposed in

So w e ’re -- yeah, we -- this is a busy topic

24

area, but that is something we always try to do with our

25

reports is be able to identify best practices.

20
1

We will look at anybody.

We will weigh

2

credibility a bit based on the source.

3

a real spectrum out there and so -- and we want -- our goal

4

is to be bicameral, bipartisan on everything we do.

5

our directive from the General Assembly.

6

to look at stuff, w e ’re going to look at stuff that’s going

7

to be that moderate approach that will appeal to most sides

8

of the aisle.

9

to get most of the people in the middle, hopefully.

10
11

And because there’s

That’s

So if w e ’re going

We may not get the fringes, but w e ’re going
That’s

the goal.
REPRESENTATIVE STAATS:

And based on your answer,

12

it sounds like your focus was not only on Pennsylvania

13

stakeholders, but was expanded to neighboring states?

14

MS. HURSH:

Oh, beyond neighboring states.

It is

15

every day there is a new article in some of the Listserv’s

16

that I follow on some new thing happening in Georgia, or

17

Wisconsin, or Arizona.

18

of states who are in a lot more turmoil than us over

19

Election Law issues and so, imagine that.

20

I mean, there is -- there are a lot

So yeah, so w e ’re looking at those and saying,

21

oh, they said that.

22

their Election Laws are different than ours and their state

23

constitutions are different than ours.

24

can be an exemplar, but we got to see how close they match

25

us before we just say oh, we should do whatever Hawaii’s

But again, we have to remember that

So they’re -- they

21
1

doing or whatever.

2

unique.

3

little eccentric, yes.

We have in many ways, being old let’s you be a

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

4
5

Because, yeah, Pennsylvania’s kind of

Representative Staats?

6

REPRESENTATIVE STAATS:

7

very much for your answers.

8

you, Chairman.

Obviously, thank you
And thank

So next, Representative

Webster.

11
12

No.

I appreciate it.

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9
10

Any follow-ups,

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

Yes.

Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.

13

You mentioned some of the controversies in other

14

states and how w e ’re doing this.

15

methodological person.

16

for those three principles that you discussed in your

17

testimony that our counties are sometimes diverse and

18

different.

19

procedural changes as a sort of a landmark that goes in

20

there.

21

significant lead time to implement changes.

22

principles that should guide us a little bit in our

23

discussion.

24
25

And I tend to be the more

And so I want to thank you, I think

That funding would be required if we had

And that our county election officials will need
So three

I ’d like to mention a couple of things in our
experience, right?

That that second principle about

22
1

funding because as we, you know, we can think of beneficial

2

changes in procedures and just legislating them creates

3

typically what we don't like, an unfunded mandate that we'd

4

push on our counties.

5

And I'll mention some personal experience, but

6

it's not mine.

During my military career, my wife, Laura,

7

probably supported as Judge of Elections or tabulation, you

8

know, person in four different states.

9

says that whether it's pre-canvassing 14 days or even

And that experience

10

worse, pre-canvassing not till Election Day that we did in

11

Pennsylvania, that those times are when our election

12

services people are absolutely busiest.

13

additional activity at a time when they're maxed out, let

14

alone if they're shorthanded on individuals.

15

So we're mandating

So I guess I wanted to raise that issue, so that

16

it's not an unfunded mandate and maybe that's a principle

17

that should be added to the discussion around how do we

18

provide the manpower to do this correctly.

19

MS. HURSH:

And that is a topic that we've looked

20

at.

21

with the mass exodus of election directors that we've

22

experienced in the last year.

23

act.

24

Election Day is challenging, but asking them to canvass all

25

those ballots on Election Day and get a number back in 24

How to deal with poll worker shortages.

How to deal

Part of it's a balancing

If you give them more, giving them more work before

23
1

hours is another heavy burden on them.

2

manpower thing and it’s how you pay for those people.

3

And again, it’s a

So one of the topics we are looking at is how do

4

you deal with those manpower shortages and where do you

5

find those people?

6

authorized compensation to who can serve in those roles.

7

From something as simple as what is the

So it’s a lot of stuff like that, but absolutely,

8

that is one of the topic areas that our county election

9

officials in particular have stressed.
ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

10
11

Mr.

Chairman, just to comment.

12

You alluded to it, but didn’t say it out loud.

13

Right now, in Pennsylvania, government employees are not

14

allowed to be poll workers.

15

resource we might want to consider.

16
17

MS. HURSH:

That’s something w e ’ve talked about.

It’s just not in recommendation form yet.
ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

18
19

And so, eventually, that’s a

right.

Thank you so much.

You bet,

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

21

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Representative Keefer?
Thank you.

My first

22

question is regarding the input you were taking essentially

23

a lot of intel in from different groups.

24
25

Can you tell me some of the groups that you
worked with to collect information beyond the counties as

24
1

far as voter outreach like to get the voters understanding

2

of what took place on Election Day?

3

you, my voters in my county would say one thing, but I

4

don’t know that the county would [inaudible].

5

MS. HURSH:

Because I can tell

We didn’t individually poll voters.

6

We have a couple of voter organizations on the Board.

7

committee of 70.

8

officials, but -- and we have received correspondence from

9

a number of individual people who just are aware that the

The

I mean, a lot of them are county election

10

study is ongoing and have written us, but w e ’ve not done a

11

formal poll the workers kind of survey.

12

relied on our county election officials.

13

W e ’ve really

We did pull in a panel for one of our meetings of

14

different election directors from different areas of the

15

state and they all testified to the experiences in their

16

counties.

17

between say Lycoming County and Montgomery County or some

18

of those.

And again, very much highlighting the difference

But kind of informal gathering of information.

19

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Okay.

That’s helpful.

20

And then the other, another question I have going

21

into that is in reading the report that you put out last

22

June, the 2021 report.

23

you know, giving additional advance time to pre-canvass

24

ballots or process ballots.

25

that was entertained as far as how, you know, how to deal

One of the proposed amendments is,

Was that the only solution

25
1

with mail-in ballots period?

2

MS. HURSH:

Oh, no, no.

That was just the one

3

that we felt from the counties was the most urgent need

4

from their perspective because so much of the aggravation

5

they experienced in the days -

6

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

7

MS. HURSH:

Right.

-- after the 2020 election, dealt

8

with why aren’t you getting these numbers out?

Why aren’t

9

you getting all these ballots counted right away?

So that

10

came in by far as the number one concern of the county

11

people.

12

stuff.

13

But we have a whole bunch of other mail-in ballot

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

No —

so no —

okay.

But

14

my question was in dealing with it.

15

that is in here is to, you know, give them, I think it’s 12

16

or 14 days advance to pre-canvass.

17

solutions that were entertained?

18

we used to do with absentee ballots, right, is that they

19

were pushed back to the actual precincts.

20

So the recommendation

Were there any other
I mean, for example, what

Now I know we haven’t stuck with statute or law

21

regarding precinct size, so some of them are

22

disproportionately large, so they would need to be cut

23

down, but then when they’re sent back to the precinct, you

24

have two opportunities.

25

says I want to vote in-person, you could actually pull that

One is if somebody comes in and

26
1

ballot so that the intent of the voter is realized.

2

Two would be that those precinct workers would

3

more than likely know the voter is coming in or at least

4

know the address that’s there which, you know, could

5

address some of those issues.

6

other solutions?

7

MS. HURSH:

So just curious if you did

We did talk about that.

We talked

8

about that a little bit.

9

county officials was that they were glad to get them out of

The overall impression from the

10

the precincts because depending on the election, those

11

precincts could be open three or four hours after the close

12

of the polls, opening those absentee ballots and tallying

13

them, and then reporting them to the county.

14

So overall, our impression was -- and there may

15

be county officials who feel differently that the move to

16

take the write-in and absentee ballot tallying away from

17

the precincts and to the county was beneficial to their

18

poll workers.

19

Now I happen to know the precinct I vote in, and

20

I forget which election it was, there were so many write-in

21

and absentee ballots, that they ran out of the forms and

22

were using power towels from the restroom to make new

23

sheets to tally all of those votes.

24

in and it had all the information, but so sometimes it can

25

be a real thing.

And they turned them
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1

But the points you make are -- we did hear those

2

points as well.

3

rural precincts, somebody comes in, everybody knows them.

4

And but that was again, the opposite on -- with some of the

5

more -- some of the counties that have grown exponentially

6

in the last few years and the comment is now we don't know

7

who everybody is coming in and the poll workers don't

8

recognize everybody because it's beyond their neighbors,

9

so.

10

That when smaller precincts, especially

But yeah, no, and we also, the time period itself

11

we looked at, there's a real span that were out there.

12

ended up on 14, but we've had at least 16 bills introduced

13

this session on pre-canvassing that pretty much run from

14

three days to 21 days before.

15

that's kind of in the middle of the road.

16

important to them that it not be a mandate that they start

17

14 days before, but that you had that flexibility, again,

18

based on your county needs on how much time you would need.

19

We

So it was kind of a, oh,

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

And it was very

Yeah, just get into the

20

processes and procedures that were absent, so that gives me

21

a little pause.

22

Mr. Chairman, if I may?

Okay.

And then another question that I had was

23

regarding did the Committee take the time to review or get

24

into the guidance that, all the different guidance that was

25

issued during the election?

28
1

MS. HURSH:

2

it on a staff level.

3

yet with it.

4

was confusing to people.

5

going to address more carefully.

6

as quickly as I would have liked to, but w e ’re dealing with

7

Zoom, w e ’re dealing with COVID, w e ’re dealing with trying

8

to get people together.

9

and choose what seemed to be the most urgent matters, but

10
11

We have looked it.

We have reviewed

We have not gone to the full Board

It’s there.

We understand that a lot of it
And is something, I think we were
We have not worked quite

So w e ’ve really had to try to pick

also try to address all of our directives.
So, yes, as the world becomes a little -- I don’t

12

even want to use the word normal because I don’t know what

13

that means anymore.

14

bit, I would like to see us pick up the pace and be able to

15

do more between reports that we can bring more information.

16

We don’t have a deadline and so, we could be around as long

17

as our Decedents’ Estates Advisory Committee which is

18

coming up on what, 75th anniversary, something like that.

19
20
21

But as the world settles down a little

MR. PASEWICZ:

Since 1945, so —

whatever,

however long that is.
MS. HURSH:

But I ’m going to retire before then.

22

And I would like to have this nailed down really well, so

23

that when I ultimately, you know, leave it behind, it will

24

be a maintenance job.

25

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Right.

And I understand

29
1

that it is, you know, when you pick the scab of one, you

2

get into, you know, three or four different other issues.

3

MS. HURSH:

4

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

5

Yep.
But the guidance issues

were -- that was a huge thing.

6

And then, going back to my other point as far as

7

having, you know, different perspectives on that committee

8

is, you know, the counties kind of align with -- although

9

they’re different, right, and that’s why we allow them the

10

flexibility to administer the elections according to their

11

county needs, right?

12

That’s one perspective that’s there.

So I just think it’s important to have, you know,

13

somebody that’s advocating for the voter end of it as well

14

and, you know, because that’s the one thing we know is

15

missing, you know, voter confidence, right?

16

MS. HURSH:

17

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Yes.
So we need to have

18

processes and procedures that are not just like look, this

19

is a great flow chart and look, we got it all mapped out,

20

but in practicality, an actual application, you know, how

21

does it work?

What is the experience that is there?

22

So I just think it’s important to have that

23

perspective coming through just as loud as the county

24

workers are as well.

25

MS. HURSH:

If we could boost voter confidence, a

30
1

lot of these issues would go away.

2

humble opinion, I -

3

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

But in my personal,

And I go back to with

4

the, you know, the precincts and the precinct level

5

because, you know, regardless of who that -- I couldn’t

6

tell you what my Judge of Elections party affiliation is,

7

but I can tell you, she does not put up with nonsense, all

8

right?

9
10

MS. HURSH:

Exactly.

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

And I might look at

11

something she’s doing and thinking that’s not done right,

12

but I ’m not even going to open my mouth because it runs a

13

certain way.

And that, but that’s voter confidence, too.

14

MS. HURSH:

15

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

16

Yeah.
Because I know that

there’s no funny business -

17

MS. HURSH:

18

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Right, exactly.
-- going on in some of

19

those precincts because, you know, it’s not about a party

20

for them, it’s about a job and this is their responsibility

21

and they take it very seriously.

22

start there is because -

23

MS. HURSH:

24

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

25

So I think that’s why we

Yeah.
-- that’s where you start

with voter confidence where it’s local.

Thank you, Mr.
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1
2

Chairman.
MS. HURSH:

And we -- if I had composed -- I ’ll

3

probably get kicked under the table.

4

ELAB membership,

5

we got a statutory directive of who our membership would be

6

and so we work with what we get.

If I had composed the

I might have picked a different mix, but

7

So sometimes we get advisory committees and it

8

will say somebody with this kind of experience, somebody

9

with that kind of experience.

And then w e ’ll go and look

10

through our massive list of people w e ’ve worked with in the

11

past, organizations w e ’ve worked with in the past, and try

12

to say oh, this will -- and w e ’ll literally do a

13

spreadsheet and say this interest needs to be represented,

14

this interest needs to be represented, this interest needs

15

to be represented, and try to fill those blanks in and as

16

little as geometric -- not geometric, geographic diversity

17

and lots of other issues.

18

whoever wrote Act 12, made us -

19

MR. PASEWICZ:

20

MS. HURSH:

21
22
23
24
25

And I ’m not complaining about

Act 12.

-- yes, Act 12.

I just might have

done it differently, so.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

All right.

Representative Nelson?
REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And thank you for your very challenging work that you guys
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1

are, you know, getting into.

2

Just kind of building a little bit when you had

3

shared that you broke into five different topic areas that

4

you're looking at best practices.

5

best practices for some may be worse practices for others.

And this best concept of

You had said to the earlier question that you

6
7

haven't really been incorporating or looking at polling,

8

like what voter perspective of things, but at the same

9

time, the importance of voter confidence, you know.
Wouldn't there be an opportunity or maybe the

10
11

Commission is looking at some of both the Pennsylvania

12

specific polling for some of those voter concerns and

13

beliefs, let's say the extreme support for voter ID that

14

seems to be out there where the Commission could vet the

15

surveys to make sure that they are valid, they are

16

balanced, they're bipartisan.
Because from my perspective, there is a pretty

17
18

considerable disconnect between a lot of voters and maybe

19

the election folks, you know, even in their area.

20

once you leave that person's area, the perception of

21

another area is maybe a little bit even more jaded, you

22

know.

And then

So it's interesting to me that public perception

23
24

and belief hasn't been maybe included in those perspectives

25

or has it?

33
1

MS. HURSH:

Not as much as you’re suggesting.

2

And honestly, that’s not a bad idea and so I ’m probably

3

going to go back and tag one of our policy people to -

4

MR. PASEWICZ:

Yeah, we could see what we could

5

do, you know, try to come up with a survey tool of some

6

kind.

7

up with something, but yeah, we could try to come up with

8

some way of taking the temperature maybe or the getting

9

opinions of, you know, voters as opposed to administrators.

10

And, you know, it may be a challenge to try to come

MS. HURSH:

Well, and I think also, we can look

11

for those polls and surveys that have already been

12

conducted and see what they have to say.

13

I advise our staff not to identify sources based on

14

perceived political perspective because I don’t want to

15

prejudice people’s opinions one way or the other with

16

regard to oh, for like an example, there was a really good

17

study in Mother Jones a couple years ago.

18

me, do you really want to cite Mother Jones in a report?

19

I ’m like, but it’s really good survey.

20

you know we debated.

21

In a general way,

And he said to

And it’s like so,

So that’s something we do try to keep an eye on.

22

In that particular instance, I think we would say, okay,

23

this poll was conducted by this group and this is what they

24

reported to get a feel for where the information is coming

25

from.
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1

Because my undergraduate degree is in political

2

science and economics and I know how to manipulate a survey

3

and survey questions with the best of them, you know,

4

statistics and damn statistics, whoever is the -
REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

5
6

Yeah, what do they say,

figures don’t lie, but liars figure, you know, so.

7

MS. HURSH:

Exactly, exactly.

So that kind of

8

thing, yeah, I would like to look at.

9

it carefully through the lens of where it came from and

We need to look at

10

what perspective, even the way you draft a question.

11

mean, have you stopped beating your wife kind of thing

12

which they always warned us about in law school.

13

ask questions like that.

I

You don’t

So, yeah, I mean, we would have to do, I think,

14
15

it would not serve anybody if we didn’t analyze and

16

identify the way things are presented looking at that kind

17

of stuff.

18

should go back and look at that.

19

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

But I think absolutely, legitimately, yeah, we

That would be very much

20

appreciated.

21

with, you know, that bicameral approach, I think the

22

Committee would have the ability and the brainpower to, you

23

know, set aside more polarized questions or subsets of

24

surveys.

25

And I agree, it’s about the methodology and

The other part of that is in the areas the
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1

Commission considered or looked at criminal charges,

2

arrests, you know, that again, not from a partisan view.

3

There were Republicans that voted for people.

4

Democrats that were arrested for voting people is the

5

element of actual, you know, charges.

6

There were

Is that something that’s hey, we know that there

7

are disconnects now that even since, you know, over these

8

last two years, people have violated Election Law and

9

they’ve been brought to task for it.

10
11

Is that something

that’s being looked at by the Commission?
MS. HURSH:

W e ’ve been trying to avoid the really

12

politically charged aspects of this whole situation.

13

would have no problem going back and having our people look

14

at people who were convicted of Election Law violations.

15

People who were charged, but not prosecuted,

16

want to include those cases.

17

until proven guilty.

18

where people were convicted, or fined, or whatever the

19

outcome was, but that there was legally valid proof that

20

the Election Laws were violated, absolutely, we can do a

21

piece on that.

22

I

I would not

I mean, we still say innocent

So if we have -- if there are cases

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

I think it just if w e ’re

23

-- if we look back, it could be helpful again to help to

24

build that voter confidence because if we know -- like I

25

recall there was a controversy with a county not
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1

necessarily registering people who had moved out.

2

was somebody else that maybe consultants that had names,

3

but, you know, and there were people that did vote for

4

other people wrongfully, but it could help maybe underscore

5

the importance of mandatory participation with ERIC which

6

may be a best practice that, you know, you guys might have.

7

Just as a -

8

MS. HURSH:

9

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

10

There

Yeah, in fact —
-- trying to look at the

full circle.

11

MS. HURSH:

-- w e ’re going to becoming out in

12

this report talking about ERIC and those national

13

databases.

14

I mean, I ’m thinking there was a conviction, I

15

think up in the northeast of somebody voting for his dead

16

mother.

17

kind of things absolutely.

I recall that coming out of all of that.

So those

Part of it, too, comes into what w e ’re looking

18
19

at.

20

carefully here.

21

it, on the ELAB and that’s assisting voters in nursing

22

homes and care facilities and how that’s done and are

23

people violating any kind of ballot harvesting rules.

24

there things going on that need to be addressed.

25

elderly people putting an X on application for a mail-in

And this is longer term because I really want to tread
We have some really conflicting views on

Are

Are
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1

ballot who don't even know what they're signing.

2

We've had some of our Board Members who are very,

3

very concerned about that and essentially want no

4

assistance to anyone who has any kind of incapacity in a

5

nursing home for fear of the undue influence.

6

some who want to make sure that just because an elderly

7

person is not necessarily capable of verbal communication,

8

doesn't mean they can't think and consider and support a

9

candidate and want to be able to vote.

And we have

So we're trying to look at that, but that's a

10
11

concern that has come to us is what's going on with those

12

people who are getting assistance to vote.

13

And then coming -- drop boxes are a whole nother

14

subject, but coming into drop boxes and who can return your

15

ballot for you.

16

now from examples not identified, but -

And we'll just let that one go there for

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

17

Well, I'll try to

18

transition beyond that.

19

We would want to maybe include the individuals with

20

disabilities.

21

of our past reform to get Pennsylvania in line.

22

been a court case and individuals with disabilities, you

23

know, they struggle in that area of having their voice

24

heard.

25

And I appreciate your answering.

And there was a real strong effort in some
There's

So thank you for your work and thank you, Mr.
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1

Chairman.

2

MS. HURSH:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

4

address that in the 1300 and 1800.

5

to train administrators, so they know the law because most

6

of that’s handled by the activities director and they could

7

easily become non-compliant.

8

federally, you have to allow them to vote and there has to

9

be a way, so our kind of premise was let’s get the counties

Sure.
Thanks.

We tried to

I think it’s critical

And I agree.

I think

10

that have bipartisan teams to go in there and do it.

11

And -

12

MS. HURSH:

Well and that’s something that the 37

13

Election Code actually has a provision in it that allows

14

teams of county people to essentially do a polling place at

15

the nursing home, but it’s drafted that it only applies to

16

state and county facilities.

17

of those facilities are no longer in the poor districts.

18

Another issue with the 37 Act that may be something that we

19

want to build upon.

20

w e ’re looking at who’s had suggestions and what are some of

21

the ideas there.

And our understanding is most

And as w e ’re looking at those issues,

The other thing, and I did put it in my written

22
23

testimony is the fact that w e ’re dealing with the 37 Act

24

that has been partially codified in Title 25 and they have

25

overlaps.

And --
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1
2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Wait until you start

drafting.

3

MS. HURSH:

I know.

I know.

And that’s our

4

bread and butter kind of for us is to do that kind of

5

codification, reconciliation, clean it up, make it

6

comprehensible.

7

nobody wants to introduce it and pass it.

8

was clean it up, but -

9
10

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

And all I did

I ’m looking for some

takers for you.

11
12

I re-wrote the Uniform Firearms Act, but

MS. HURSH:

Anyway, but so that’s something that

we, w e ’re going to try to address as we move along.

13

One thing we have learned and as Glenn pointed

14

out, the 84 report, the legislation ended up being 185

15

pages long.

16

pass a bill that -- a legislature to pass that bill that

17

big, but there’s -- w e ’re not only lacking voter

18

confidence, w e ’re lacking some confidence teamwise among

19

the membership of our General Assembly.

20

I mean that in the kindest way.

21

And in 1965, you might have got somebody to

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

So if I brought -

All I got to say is we

22

did about 185 pages of election code onto the Governor’s

23

desk so -

24
25

MS. HURSH:
that.

I know and we know what happened to
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2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

—

we are capable.

are capable of it, so.

3

MS. HURSH:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5

MS. HURSH:

Yes, no, I do understand that.
Yeah.

But we have found in the past is we

6

could write a massive codification, but it’s -- and

7

Reference Bureau has even with us put in provisions that

8

said this is just a codification, w e ’re not changing

9

anything.

10
11

We

Sometimes we can get them to go.

A lot of times

they end up being taken apart and introduced piecemeal.
So our approach with this is not to try to do one

12

big codification at one time.

13

going to try to find it a home in Title 25, so that as we

14

do it, we can move it over piecemeal.

15

Each topic we address, w e ’re

Part of the issue, too, is that the items that

16

have been added to Title 25, not all of them have done

17

specific repealers.

18

repealer or if this conflicts with the 37 Act, this is the

19

status of the law which is a nice work around, but then

20

you’re still sitting there, here’s the 37 Act, here’s 25,

21

and let’s figure out which language controls.

They will do more of a general

22

So that’s one area w e ’re looking at that -- so

23

w e ’re trying to do that kind of on the side, so we don’t

24

get away from the priority issues.

25

w e ’re trying to tackle right now is the definition of

But one of the ones
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residence for voter registration.

There’s language in 37

2

that defines residence that doesn’t completely match what’s

3

in Title 25.
So that’s one that we think we can try to

4
5

reconcile that stays within some fairly neat parameters

6

that w e ’re not going to be attacking a bunch of other

7

things because ultimately,

8

in the country that doesn’t have all its laws in a code

9

where you can look it up by title and subject.

I believe w e ’re the last state

And that

10

[inaudible] laws actually from a lawyer, as a lawyer from a

11

competition perspective, nobody can come here and read our

12

statutes like I can read our statutes.

13

part of the whole modernization thing that started in the

14

early 70’s.

15

way.

16

accomplish as we move forward.

And so our goal is always to try to move that

So that’s always a little side thing w e ’re trying to

17

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

18

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

19
20
21
22

But honestly, it’s

Representative Miller?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you for your testimony.
You had referenced the -- some discussion about
the SURE system and monitoring that closely.
I was particularly interested in your comment

23

about removing dead voters from the rolls and you probably

24

recall about last year, the Department of State entered an

25

agreement to -- a settlement to remove 21,000 dead voters
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1

from the rolls, some of which had been on the roll for 20

2

years.

3

My question is your comment ELAB is very

4

concerned about the advancement of the SURE system being

5

modernized.

6

exactly are you doing from your part to monitor the

7

modernization of the SURE system.
MS. HURSH:

8
9

Describe that in more detail, please.

What

Well, we're certainly not auditing.

We're not sitting in on their meetings.

We're mostly

10

grilling Jonathan Marks at our meetings to -- is he back

11

there?

12

-- in our next report, we're going to be talking about the

13

SURE system and how it evolved and what we understand to be

14

the rollout and what they intend to accomplish.

15

Hi, Mark.

Anyway, to find out what's going on.

We

Some of the stuff we're looking at is even though

16

we're watching basically wait and seeing with the SURE

17

system modernization is we are looking at making

18

recommendations to look at national databases and

19

identifying the criteria that would make those national

20

databases acceptable for our state to use them.

21

And then the big issue with the deceased voters

22

and amending Title 25 to get us to be able to access more

23

death records.

24

Social Security Administration death records which they

25

can't get at right now.

And in particular, we're looking at the

So that's something we've talked
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2

about.
So w e ’re working around it to try to make their

3

job more streamlined and but w e ’re also -- to the -- I

4

think probably that outside of the Department of State, our

5

Board knows as much than anybody else about how it’s

6

rolling out and what they’re going to do and what each

7

piece is going to be doing.

8

here, you can ask him all about it when he gets up here.

9

But yeah, since Jonathan’s

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

We will.

And to your

10

assessment of ELAB’s opinion is this a high priority of

11

ELAB or is it a non-priority?

12

MS. HURSH:

They would -- no.

Voter

13

registration, voter list maintenance is very important.

14

-- there have been -- and again, w e ’re county heavy and the

15

counties are very much we need this technology.

16

the ability to do this smoothly and seamlessly.

17

It

We need

What -- some of the topics that w e ’ve looked at

18

and talked about have actually been matters that w e ’ve said

19

yes, this would be good, but we can’t do it right now

20

because the infrastructure isn’t there.

21

on the back burner waiting until the technology is

22

available throughout the state that counties can access.

23

Some of the things w e ’ve looked at, electronic

So they’re kind of

24

poll books.

25

know there are counties that have already done pilots on

Now we know State is rolling those out.

We
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1

them.

2

actually doing pilots on them this go round.

3

something w e ’re looking at.

4

That’s something -- I believe Dauphin County is
So that’s

There have been proposals for voting centers.

5

Some of our members again feel that without the appropriate

6

infrastructure and electronic access, that they’re not -

7

they may be able to be implemented in some municipalities,

8

but it’s not ready for primetime.

9

statewide implementation yet.

It’s not ready for a

So part of our work and our prospective is to be

10
11

aware of timeframes and timelines.

12

we can do it now, revisit in a year and see where it is and

13

what we can do.

And if we don’t think

And so, again, w e ’re trying to balance between

14
15

what we think can be done now with minimal disruption and

16

but that thoroughly addresses priority issues and what may

17

need to wait a little bit.

18

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

Okay.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

20

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

Thank you.

Representative Ryan?

Thank you so much.

Glenn

21

and Yvonne, it’s great to see you both again.

22

that don’t know, Yvonne’s husband and I served in the

23

Marine Corps.

24

He was an outstanding officer and please give Dennis my

25

best.

For those

It’s hard to believe it’s been 43 years ago.
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1

MS. HURSH:

I will.

2

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

Process controls are a

3

really big thing in the private sector and for me as a CPA

4

and Chair of the Audit Committee of the Public School

5

Employee Retirement System.

6

And then the question came up earlier from

7

Representative Nelson about criminal sanctions and things

8

of that nature.

9

sign the 10K, they -- you had to sign with an absolute

And in the private sector, when I would

10

affirmative affirmation you recognize the criminal

11

penalties if something were to go wrong.

12

So the question I have surrounds that issue of

13

internal control surveys.

14

effort on ELAB to look at whether or not we need to put the

15

SURE system and the election system under a process

16

controls audit such as a SOC 1 Type 2.

17

that is it likely that we would be able to pass that?

18

MS. HURSH:

Would a -- would -- is there any

And if were to do

We know audits are out there.

We

19

know it’s an issue.

20

going there.

21

One of them is going to -- one of the aspects of it is I

22

don’t have a finance background.

23

on what the different audits actually accomplish.

24

how you audit the books of a non-profit as I serve on the

25

board of one of those, but that’s kind of audit, I don’t

We haven’t gone there yet.

We will be

There is certainly enough interest in them.

I got to educate myself
I know
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think is what people are talking about when it comes to the

2

election process.

3

So that’s going to be a process of me and our

4

staff learning about that and we do this all the time.

5

have our Broadband Advisory Committee and I couldn’t even

6

tell you what broadband meant three -

7

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

8

MS. HURSH:

9

We

Sure.

-- years ago.

How you defined it.

So we learn as we go and the deeper we get into a topic,

10

the more we pick things up.

11

about all the audits and how they work, but w e ’re not there

12

yet.

13

And I ’ll ultimately know all

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

One of the things that

14

happened during the reports that the Chair had with the

15

2020 election and the going forward about those issues was

16

the fact that we literally have 67 separate election

17

systems in the Commonwealth.

18

And from a -- I ’m only looking at it from a

19

process control perspective.

20

we have financial audits in the private sector.

21

operation audit, you would look at a Lean Six Sigma

22

approach to find out where your critical touchpoints are to

23

find out where there are problems, where there are issues,

24

where as an example, the dead voter list, you would say

25

well here’s our process control that we put into place to

We have operation audits and
And in the
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1

identify that as quickly as possible.

2

the failings would be.

We would know where

I mean, I don't mean to be funny about this, but

3
4

if someone failed to register a person's death because

5

there could be an economic incentive to not report the

6

death, there would be no way anyone could rationally expect

7

an election system to uncover that.

8

MS. HURSH:

9

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

Correct.
But you'd have types of

10

controls.

11

someone who's over a certain age are we checking to make

12

sure that they're, you know, that they're still there.

13

as an example, the type of audits that were in House Bill

14

1300 and the work that was done at 1800, would have

15

provided the type of controls that would be necessary.

16

they are bipartisan.

17

We deal with that at PSERS to make sure that

But

And

A financial audit as you know in economics,

18

they're really bipartisan.

19

agenda or conservative, it's economics.

20

laws that no one -- I've often made the comment, no

21

legislature has ever passed a law of supply and demand.

22

And any time they've attempted to repeal it, it's usually

23

blown up in their face.

24
25

There's not a liberal economic
They're natural

And so, I would make the same comment here
relative to the system controls.

If we want to have people
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1

get that type of confidence in the election system, making

2

sure that we have the soundness of the process controls and

3

so I would encourage you to work with the chair of the

4

committee who’s got some great information on audits and

5

both operation -- predominately an option audit and a Lean

6

Six Sigma approach.

7

as well that have done that.

8
9
10

We have a number of standalone bills

But I truly appreciate the great work that you
all have done and I want to thank you very much for that.
Again, it’s great to see you again today.

11

MS. HURSH:

12

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

13

MS. HURSH:

14

REPRESENTATIVE RYAN:

15

Well, you know us Marine wives -
Yes.

-- we can do anything.
Yes, m a ’am.

And w e ’re

afraid to tell you otherwise.

16

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

17

MS. HURSH:

18

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

19

MS. HURSH:

So —

Amen.

And last —

oh, I ’m sorry.
Go ahead, no.

I was just going to say this has

20

actually been really good because you have given us a

21

number of things, and fortunately, Glenn’s writing them

22

down because I didn’t.

23

what w e ’re doing.

24
25

That to go back and really work on

And if, again, as our reports come out, if you
see something that you’re like well, why didn’t you look at

49
1

that?

2

I only answer the phone unless I recognize the number.

3

email us.

4

Anything to let us know that hey, this is something w e ’d

5

like to see you look a little more thoroughly at.

6

that point, too, we can take it back to the ELAB and say

7

hey, maybe we ought to rethink what w e ’re going to do next.

8

Maybe we need to shift our focus to something else.

Email us, call us.

I read snail mail.

And at

left my brain.

11
12

You know, snail mail.

But

So just wanted to throw that in there before it

9
10

Well, maybe not call us because

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:
anybody else?

13

Perfect.

Last up,

Webster, Representative Webster, go ahead.

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

14

hopefully, this will be a quick one.

15

you.

And

Mr. Chairman, thank

I ’ve been very intrigued by the comments across

16
17

the board from my colleagues this morning and wanted to ask

18

a question about the states that are all in on mail-in

19

ballots.

20

curve over numerous election cycles till they got good at

21

it, I ’ll say.

22

talked about like security or chain of custody and even

23

process controls, what do we know from places, I think

24

Oregon California, I think Florida who are all in on mail-

25

in ballots?

And I ’ve read a little bit about their learning

And I would think some of the issues we
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MS. HURSH:

We know lots.

I can’t tell you off

2

the top of my head.

3

memory on yesterday.

4

attorneys has spent most of his time looking at the mail-in

5

ballots and looking at those states that are all mail-in.

6

And I ’ll make sure we talk about that in the report, so I

7

can be responsive to your question, but I don’t have that

8

one in the front files right now.

9

That’s not something I refreshed my
But we have -- one of our staff

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

10

we could be here all day.

11

as a long question -

I -- so I didn’t mean to pose it

12

MS. HURSH:

13

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

14

MS. HURSH:

15

Oh, no, no, no, it’s fine.

17

MS. HURSH:

20
21

but yeah.

out, but, you know -
ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

19

—

I ’d like to just be able to pull it

16

18

And I think

Yeah.

-- aging, dying prions, things like

that.
ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

Yeah.

Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yeah.

Now w e ’ll give

22

our last questions, comments to -- oh, we have one more,

23

Representative Madden.

24

Representative Madden, go ahead.

25

REPRESENTATIVE MADDEN:

I ’m glad I looked on the screen.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

51
1

And thank you, Ms.

2

comprehensive testimony.

3

[inaudible] for your really in-depth and

But I heard you talk about a number of issues and

4

policies and improvements that you’d like to make and you

5

said but w e ’re not quite there yet.

6

that we can give you so that you can get there and we can

7

make this process more streamlined?
And particularly,

8
9

What are the resources

I ’m interested in how we as the

Chairman said, normally, it’s administrators and activities

10

directors.

11

Women Voters goes in and works with the activities

12

directors and the administrators to register voters and

13

make sure they understand the ballot.

And I know in some counties, the League of

And I can tell you I hear from seniors over and

14
15

over again that they’re not happy that we got rid of one

16

ticket voting because they know diehard whether they’re

17

Democrats or Republicans.
But my question is what are the resources that we

18
19

can give you so we can get there, we can make this process

20

better?
MR. PASEWICZ:

21

I think it’s just a matter of

22

time.

23

and the ELAB people are meeting fairly regularly and as

24

much as we don’t really like virtualism as w e ’d prefer in

25

person, it actually, I think we can meet more often, you

I, you know, our staff is working pretty well on it
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know, when we're doing it virtual.

So it's just a matter

2

of time to work through all of it.

But I would say that we

3

have what we need in terms of resources.

4

an appropriations hearing, but no, but we're doing okay.

5

think we -- it's just a matter of time of working through

6

all the different aspects.

7
8

MS. HURSH:

I know this isn't
I

Oh, we're the most cost-effective

agency -
MR. PASEWICZ:

9
10

MS. HURSH:

We're very frugal.

-- this legislature ever created.

11

and I'll sing our praises all day any day.

12

me to get on my soapbox.

13

So

Anybody wants

From the -- from a more fundamental level, again,

14

like we talked about, counties need time.

15

to ask them to change more things, we need to allow them to

16

adjust to that.

17

beat up right now and over the last two years.

18

think one of the things we've heard from them is just show

19

a little mercy.

20

things all at once.

21

If we're going

We -- our election officials are pretty
And so, I

Don't ask us to implement too many new

And then fundamentally and universally, in every

22

study we've ever done anywhere, any time, more money to the

23

counties.

24

to the human services agencies.

25

problems if the -- of the world if we just, you know, threw

More money to the school districts.

More money

We could solve all the
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1

money at it.

2

And I don’t want to discount that, but I also

3

know the counties are very, very concerned about being

4

asked to add more technology and those sort of things

5

without a little help paying for it.

6

of our agency, but universally.

7

REPRESENTATIVE MADDEN:

So that from outside

And your point is well

8

taken.

9

everyone who testified, just showed a wealth of knowledge

If I could just add your point is well taken and

10

and I was just, you know, I was impressed and, you know,

11

the changes you want to make and that you’re looking to the

12

future and you brought up, you know, resources.

13

could help, you know, if we appropriated more resources so

14

you could get those experts to come in and train and you

15

talked about beat up, you know, workers, bring them, you

16

know, bring in troops, so to speak if, you know, to help

17

them and to be able to implement this.

18

And if we

And absolutely, your point is well taken, you

19

can’t do too much too fast, but to have a timeline and try

20

to achieve that together, I think just moves this forward.

21
22

But thank you so much for all of the testimony.
It was greatly appreciated and informative.

23

MS. HURSH:

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

Absolutely.

Representative Diamond.

It’s what we do.
And last up,
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1

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

2

Thank you, Yvonne.

3

do want to say that it’s been a great pleasure working with

4

both of you and with Deputy Secretary Marks on the Election

5

Law Advisory Board.

6

Thank you, Glenn for coming today.

I

I just wanted to say that, you know, one of the

7

great points that was made today was about public

8

perception.

9

application and understanding of the elective process,

And public perception versus practical

10

there is a wide gulf.

11

take the time to watch our hearings which -- or our

12

meetings which are online because quite frankly, look, I ’ve

13

been in this business for 18 years now and I have learned

14

more over the last two years about elections than I ever

15

want to know, and because public perception and what really

16

happens.

17

And I wish that the public would

And I ’m glad our Board is dominated really by the

18

counties because these are the boots on the ground people

19

who know what their -- I ’m not going to say the majority of

20

these counties, but the largest group of people are county

21

administrators or county officials.

22

Because having the boots on the ground is really

23

doing us a lot of a world of good in explaining, okay, you

24

know, how public perception and the practical application

25

of Elections Law is different.
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I mean, for instance, I have had voters come to

2

me and say I want to know, I want to be able to track that

3

my vote will be counted for Candidate B.

4

tell them, you understand we have a secret ballot and at

5

some point, you have to release that ballot so that someone

6

else can count it.

7

violate our Constitution.

8

their heads to wrap around that, but once they do, then

9

they go on, okay, this is a little bit more complicated

10

You can’t track that.

And I have to

That would

And it’s hard for them to get

than what I thought it was.

11

The -- you know, and, you know, regarding, you

12

know, the Representative Madden’s question, I mean, that

13

was the first thing that came to my mind, too is like this

14

Committee has run bills regarding time, but it’s about

15

daylight savings time and not actually making the seconds

16

longer in each day because that’s what you would need as

17

these things do take time.

18

perception, too.

19

them now.

And that’s part of public

The public wants answers and they want

20

MS. HURSH:

21

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Yesterday.
But we have to take the

22

time to figure out what the answers are, so that we can fix

23

whatever’s wrong and then come back and rebuild that public

24

confidence.

25

So I just wanted to say it’s been such a great
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pleasure working on this.

2

next term, that the speaker reappoints me as his designee

3

because this is one, been one of the most enjoyable

4

experiences of my legislative career is to serve on this

5

Board where we have so many people with so many different

6

opinions and much credit to you, Yvonne, because you run

7

the meetings and you keep us in line.

8

despite what you might think, they don’t become

9

contentious.

I hope that if I ’m here in the

And those meetings,

They’re very, very professionally driven and

10

everybody has the same goal overarching and let’s fix

11

what’s wrong and move forward so that the public can once

12

again have confidence in our electoral system.

13

So thank you both for coming today and for your

14

testimony.

15

I hope to be working with you for a long time into the

16

future.

It’s been a great pleasure working with you and

17

MS. HURSH:

18

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Until I retire.
Thank you, both.

19

greatly appreciate your time.

20

recommendations coming in the June timeframe.

21

for the work -

Yeah,

We look forward to your

22

MS. HURSH:

23

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

So thank you

Okay.
-- and please pass on

24

our regards to the entire ELAB Board.

25

much.

So thank you very
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1

MS. HURSH:

2

talk about our work.

Thank you.

I like to

Thank you very much.

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

4

MS. HURSH:

5

This was fun.

Yeah.

Now I have to avoid Jonathan so he

doesn’t hit me on the way out the door.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6

All right.

Our next

7

panel is Jonathan Marks who is not new to this Committee.

8

H e ’s Deputy Secretary of Elections and Commissions.

9

still working on a T-shirt.

10

Program, I like that.

11

in real quick -

State Government Loyalty

W e ’re just going to have you swear

12

MR. MARKS:

13

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

14

W e ’re

Sure.
—

so stand up, raise

your right hand.

15
16

[Witness sworn.]

17
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

18

Thank you.

Always

19

appreciate you being here.

20

of kind of the maps and stuff, I only had like one

21

complaint over the entire petition process.

22

member and it was he supposedly had a primary opponent

23

didn’t show up on the list, didn’t have a -- he didn’t make

24

the ballot like a rejection.

25

letter.

I got to say with the lateness

Just one

I guess he had a rejection
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1

MR. MARKS:

2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

3

to me, so I don't know what that process is.

4

just a little bit of unknown.

5

only issue that was brought to my attention, so.
MR. MARKS:

6
7

Right.
That's never happened
And there was

But that was literally the

Well, I give full credit to our

staff.

8

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

Our staff has been amazing

10

throughout.

11

different -- two separate filing periods, one for statewide

12

and congressional candidates and then one for legislative

13

candidates and state committee.

14

of time.

15

Everyone did great.

16

legislative staff, Finance and Operations, they all pitched

17

in to help.

18

to our -

You know, as you know, we held two

So it prolonged the period

We had volunteers from all over the Department.
The Office of Chief Counsel, our

So I'm happy to hear that, but all credit goes

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

20

MR. MARKS:

21

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yeah.

-- amazing staff.
The only weird part is

22

when you get those signatures, you treat those petitions

23

like gold. It's weird handing them off and watching them

24

disappear.

25

It's a -
MR. MARKS:

I did hear from one State Senator
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1

about that, too.

That’s a different experience.

2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

3

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

You know, I think in the end though,

4

it helped to move things along.

5

because you have to then cram everyone into a -

It was more efficient

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

7

MR. MARKS:

8

-- conference room and having people

waiting out in the plaza of the Keystone Building -
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MR. MARKS:

10

Right.

-- I think opened up a lot of space

11

and made things move a lot faster.

12

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

13

Right.

Yeah.

I went up Sunday

morning, 20 minutes in and out, so.

14

MR. MARKS:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

16

a little rough.

17

opening comments?

Great.

It’s all good.

Right.

Okay.

18

MR. MARKS:

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

20

MR. MARKS:

It’s —

it was

With that, any

I just wanted to say thank you -
Yep.

-- Chairman Grove.

I don’t know if

21

Chairman Conklin is on.

22

State Government Committee.

23

appear.

24

continue to want to hear from me.

25

usually doesn’t take 18 months for them to get tired of it.

And thank you members of the House
I appreciate the invitation to

And I want to say how thankful I am that you
Most people don’t and it

60
1

I do want to -- I already recognized the

2

Department staff.

3

of elections and their staff, too.

4

been a lot of unique challenges.

5

no different.

6

challenges as well and the counties have been amazing

7

throughout that.

8

in difficult times, during a transition period.

I want to recognize the 67 county boards
You know, there have
Certainly, this year is

In recent elections, w e ’ve had similar

They’re working very hard and, you know,

I know I ’ll probably answer questions about SURE

9
10

modernization, so I ’ll skip over that part, but as we

11

continue to move forward toward the May 17 general primary,

12

w e ’ll continue to work with our county officials to

13

identify external issues that may adversely affect them, as

14

well as, address their training needs, their equipment

15

needs, whatever it is that they need to have a successful

16

election.

17

counties and the Department staff, that we will have a

18

successful primary election, and ultimately, a successful

19

November election.

20

And I ’m confident that working together with the

I ’m ready to take questions.

I know w e ’re short

21
22

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

23

MR. MARKS:

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

Okay.

-- on time, so.
Right.

appreciate your willingness to come in.

Now, I always

It’s important we
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1

continue that dialogue with the Department and the counties

2

as we discuss election issues here in the General Assembly

3

and so forth.

4

I ’ll just start with, you know, could you just

5

provide us a timeline for the SURE system, where you’re at,

6

what’s getting implemented this primary election, and then

7

kind of your longer timeline of what that looks like moving

8

forward.

9

MR. MARKS:

Sure, absolutely.

So we actually

10

deployed Phase 1 of SURE modernization a few weeks ago and

11

w e ’re running it parallel with this primary.

12

phase includes the election management piece of SURE, as

13

well as, election night returns.

14

should expect that you will see the election night returns

15

website as it has been, but w e ’re running in parallel

16

basically, a beta site for the new election night returns,

17

which is going to be a lot better.

18

slicker.

19

current site, but w e ’re testing it in parallel.

20

And that

Now the -- I -- you

It’s going to be a lot

It has a lot more bells and whistles than our

Phase 2 w e ’ll be implementing at the end of the

21

year after the November election and that’s really the

22

biggest piece of SURE modernization and that’s the core or

23

the heart of the system and that’s voter registration.

24

all the, you know, processing voter registrations doing

25

list maintenance, all of those things, that’s really the

And
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1

biggest piece of this.

2

November election.

3

testing in parallel.

4

it.

5

they're running the November 2022 election in the current

6

system.

And that will come after the

And again, we'll be doing a lot of this
We're going to launch components of

Counties will be testing in the new system while

And I think strategically, that's a better way to

7
8

do it.

9

gather a whole bunch of requirements and for those of you

Historically, what the Department has done is

10

who are project managers, you're kind of familiar with that

11

waterfall methodology for doing a project.

12

whole bunch of requirements, you do some testing in a test

13

environment, and then you launch it.

14

figure out how wrong you were and how many incorrect

15

assumptions you made while you were building the

16

requirements.

You gather a

And that's when you

17

By doing this, in agile methodology and launching

18

pieces of it and testing it in parallel, you'll get to, you

19

know, I've said to the counties, you know, don't freak out.

20

You're actually getting in and seeing the sausage being

21

made and you're going to see some things that you may not

22

like, but the good news is, we can fix those.

23

time.

24

clean up the mess later.

25

We have

We're not dropping this on you and then having to

So that's kind of the process that we've adopted

63
1

and I think it’s working well so far and I ’m confident that

2

it will work as we phase in the rest of these pieces.
Phase 3 then will be some additional absentee and

3
4

mail-in voting.

So it will include UOCAVA and that’s

5

coming early in the first half of 2023, making some

6

improvements to absentee processes and mail-in processes in

7

hopes that we can leverage the new technology to address

8

some of the issues that we saw in recent elections with

9

absentee and mail-in voting.
And then the final piece will be w e ’re leveraging

10
11

SURE modernization and also upgrade campaign finance and

12

lobbying disclosure.

13

2023.

14
15
16
17
18

And that will also occur next year in

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

So timeframe, the

modernization project will be completed at the end of 2023?
MR. MARKS:

Yes.

It will be completed before the

end of 2023, but certainly, 2023.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Okay.

The beta testing

19

this time for election which I think everybody appreciates

20

beta testing before going live because that usually doesn’t

21

end up well for anybody -

22

MR. MARKS:

23

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

24
25

No.
-- involved, so greatly

appreciate that.
MR. MARKS:

I ’ve been through that once in my
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1

career and it -

2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.

It’s an awful

3

process.

4

and that will go live, I assume the general election?

5

the -

6

So you’ll be able to get corrections and fixes

MR. MARKS:

Yes.

The election management and

7

election night returns will be live by the general

8

election.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

If

Okay.

I know there

10

were some concerns on election night management with past

11

elections, some -- you added more data and you took some

12

data away.

13

Is that going to come back on?

14

discussion about negative votes coming in after -

So no one was sure like percentage of votes in.
And w e ’ve had the

15

MR. MARKS:

16

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

17

Right.
-- election night and

people are like they’re taking votes away again.

18

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Are some of those

20

things going to get addressed with that new election night

21

management system?

22

MR. MARKS:

Yes, absolutely.

It’s, you know, it

23

was a pain point for us internally and certainly a pain

24

point for the counties.

25

looking for specific information and the current election

You know, we -- people were

65
1

night returns site was just not developed to be that

2

flexible.

3

You know, all of this information is fed, you

4

know, through the SURE system primarily.

5

voting systems.

6

of voting systems used across the Commonwealth, each with

7

their own different file formats and there’s a lot of

8

things that we have to do before an election, just to

9

effectively pull in unofficial election night returns from

10

And then you have

And we have a half a dozen different types

counties.
And then figuring out how to distribute that and

11
12

message it has been a challenge, too, with the old

13

infrastructure.

It will be a lot easier with the new

14

infrastructure.

And the solution that w e ’re using, that

15

vendor has experience with all five voting system

16

manufacturers that have systems certified in Pennsylvania.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

17

Okay.

And just for the

18

record, what happens in negative votes after election

19

night?

20

MR. MARKS:

For -- so negative votes, I think I

21

know what you’re talking about, you’re talking about where

22

it looks like, you know.

23

explain very -- I ’ll be brief.

W e ’re taking -- maybe it helps to

24

You know, counties as they’re receiving ballots

25

back from voters, they’re recording them into the system.
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1

And depending on the workload, they -- some counties record

2

them faster than others.

3

sort of like here’s what we believe the outstanding number

4

of absentee and mail-in ballots are based on what has been

5

entered into SURE and here’s how many have been counted.

So w e ’re looking at a, you know,

And what will happen in some circumstances is

6
7

that you will have counties not timely updating, you know,

8

part of that transaction and they’re going -- they’re

9

recording return ballots, but it kind of creates, and it’s

10

usually not a large number, it’s usually you’ll see like a

11

negative four on a county and it’s really based on the

12

timing of when they record return ballots, you know, versus

13

recording ballots as being sent.

14

infrequently and it’s difficult because I understand the

15

perception.

You know, it happens very

You know, we have to explain it a lot, too, you

16
17

know, and it’s really just a limitation of the current

18

system.

19

things will be a lot more efficient and we won’t be so

20

reliant on manual data entry procedures.

21
22
23

With the new system, I expect that all of those

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you.

Representative Webster?
ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

Kind of

24

technical question for you just because you mentioned it.

25

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

67
1

You mentioned data formats and sort of the

2

automatic reporting issues.

3

naturally resolves itself in that some systems are old and

4

will be replaced or do we have new systems that don't share

5

data very well?

6

MR. MARKS:

Is that something that

It doesn't entirely resolve itself.

7

I think the new system will certainly be a lot more capable

8

of handling the different file formats.

9

Government, the EAC has actually been working on a common

The Federal

10

data format for voting systems for several years.

11

would really like to see us get to that where we have a

12

common data format and the Department and the counties

13

don't have to worry about taking a variety of different

14

formats.

15

different voting systems, but we have more different -- we

16

have more filing formats than that because each county has

17

its own website and its own election, sort of election

18

night returns -

And it's actually more than six.

We have six

19

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

20

MR. MARKS:

-- functionality.

And I

Okay.

So even counties

21

that use the same voting system vendor, may be using a

22

slightly different file format so that they can feed their

23

own website.

24

solve that problem.

25

further down the road than we've been to this point.

So I think having a common data format would
But certainly, this will take us a lot
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ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

So to follow

2

that, if we -- not that you want data formats in

3

legislature, right, but if the policy was w e ’re going to

4

have a common data format, what is that?

5

upsets the apple cart in a lot of different ways all the

6

way down the county websites.

7

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

I mean that

Well, I think that would be,

8

you know, if the General Assembly were going to consider

9

that, I think that would work require a conversation not

10

only with the Department, but the voting system vendors

11

that have certified systems here, you know, to make it

12

work, to make sure that each one could comply with it.

13

You know, it’s always difficult when you’re

14

thinking of legislation, it sounds like a good idea and you

15

do it and then you find out later that it has an adverse

16

impact on a few folks.

17

but it would require a conversation up front not only with

18

the Department and counties, but also with voting system

19

vendors to make sure they can handle whatever the mandate

20

becomes.

21
22
23
24
25

So I ’m not saying it’s a bad idea,

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:
that technically.

Appreciate

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you.

Representative Keefer?
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Thank you.

I have
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1

several questions regarding the SURE system and the data

2

issue that w e ’re having.

3
4

So starting with ERIC, Department of State
contracted with ERIC.

Correct?

5

MR. MARKS:

6

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

You became a member -

We became a member, yes.
Okay.

And so, becoming a

7

member in ERIC, does that mean that you’re utilizing that,

8

the full system where they, you know, can scan your data

9

for -- against Social Security, you know, all the different

10

-- the postal service, all the different databases they

11

have for potential errors?

12

MR. MARKS:

Yes.

We -- so we -- all the members

13

are states.

14

Typically, Department of State in each jurisdiction.

15

memberships is right now about 30 states, plus the District

16

of Columbia.

17

They’re basically State Governments.
And

But yes, the ERIC program, the, you know,

18

administrative arm of the ERIC program has entered into

19

agreements with Social Security Administration, the U.S.

20

Postal Service, other entities, and that kind of feeds

21

their data analysis tools. Then each member state provides

22

information on voter registration records, as well as,

23

Department of Motor Vehicle records that they use then to

24

check against those resources and other states as well to

25

identify, you know, individuals who have moved both inside
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Pennsylvania and out of Pennsylvania, as well as, deceased

2

voters.

3

As Yvonne said earlier, one of the challenges

4

w e ’ve had and I know and I believe Representative Diamond

5

left, but he, I know he introduced legislation -- oh, h e ’s

6

back, previously, that would open up the tools.

7

the election code is very prescriptive about what tools

8

counties can use to remove deceased voters from the roles

9

and it does not include something like the ERIC program or

Right now,

10

even direct information obtained from the Social Security

11

Administration.

12

expanding so that we can fully use the ERIC tools,

13

including the deceased voter information.

14

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

15

The Department certainly supports

So while you can get

those reports, you can’t remove any of those records -

16

MR. MARKS:

17

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

18

MR. MARKS:

Correct.

We —
—

based on that report.

-- don’t even take in the reports

19

because we couldn’t do anything with them.

20

able to distribute them to the counties -

21

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

22

MR. MARKS:

23
24
25

We wouldn’t be

So -

-- because they don’t have the

authority to remove deceased voters with that tool.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

-- why would you -

why -- if you can’t do anything with it, if it’s not an
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2

actual -
MR. MARKS:

Well, w e ’re getting a lot of other

3

benefits from ERIC.

4

Address program which is a statutory requirement here in

5

Pennsylvania.

6

duplicate voters and that’s information that we would not

7

be able to do with our own internal analysis very well.

8

And they give us movers, those cross state and instate

9

movers that provide information beyond what the National

They also run the National Change of

And they do provide us with potential

10

Change of Address program can provide.

11

benefits from it.

12

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

13

take action on that information?

14

MR. MARKS:

Right.

So we are getting

And you’re allowed to

Because the election code,

15

the Federal Law and the Pennsylvania Voter Registration Law

16

requires counties to take, I believe, reasonable efforts to

17

clean up their voter rolls and they’re required to do

18

certain list maintenance-related to duplicates and moves.

19

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

So that they can take.

20

Is there anything that would prevent a county from cross

21

referencing their own prothonotary’s office or any of their

22

county records as far as -

23

MR. MARKS:

The election code, I believe used the

24

word, uses the term, they can use obituaries which

25

ironically is one of the least official sources I would
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think.

2

basically would be things that are filed -- yes, it’s the

3

election code from the 1930 -- from 1937, so a lot of this,

4

the term poorhouses is still there, too.

5

could probably get something from a prothonotary’s office

6

that would fall under the category of letters testamentary

7

that would be some official filing from a, you know, local

8

registrar that this person is deceased.

9

The other one is letters testamentary which is

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Okay.

But so, yes, they

So if you got the

10

-- let’s say you got the other information back from ERIC

11

that you’re not allowed to remove those records.

12

have the ability to turn them to an inactive voter?

13

MR. MARKS:

Do you

Well, it’s -- that’s not a -- that

14

would be -- that would conflict with the statute if we were

15

to, you know, make them inactive and follow, you know, I

16

guess follow the National Voter Registration Act process.

17

I don’t know that there’s any authority to do that either.

18

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

19

MR. MARKS:

20

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

21

I think the easiest thing would -

MR. MARKS:

23

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

25

It’s not happening now.

You’re not -

22

24

Okay.

Correct.
-- making them inactive

based on that.
MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

Someone mentioned,

I forget

73
1

who it was about the agreement that the Department entered

2

into in 2020 via litigation to do a onetime and we used the

3

ERIC data that one time, but we don't have and the counties

4

don't have the authority to use it on an ongoing basis.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

5

Okay.

And then, so

6

another thing that was brought up is going back to the

7

inactive and active voters, you know, even going through

8

all of the data with the SURE system because there's been

9

so many issues.
There was a huge switch of voters to active and

10
11

they participated in the election.

12

had participated, but then, they're showing up now as

13

inactive.

14

cause that to happen?

15

out what the rationale would be.

16

You could see that they

Is there a protocol that you're using that would
Is there, you know, trying to figure

I mean, I can understand where they would

17

possibly be switched to active, right, because they didn't

18

know they were registered to vote, maybe they attempted to

19

and then, you know, that initiated.

20

requested a mail-in ballot, right, and that would switch

21

them to an active status.

22

Or maybe they

But what would -- my understanding is you have to

23

not participate in two Presidential Elections before you

24

would be switched to inactive, before the county has the

25

ability to do that.

So how would you have people that
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participated in an election, you just switched to active,

2

participated in the election and then were -- but now in

3

the system again as inactive?

4

MR. MARKS:

Well, I mean, I ’d have to get

5

specifics about the, you know, the specific data that

6

you’re looking at but so when you register to vote, you

7

come active.

8

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

9

MR. MARKS:

Right.

And if you’re not going to be 18

10

until the day of the election, you’re actually placed in a,

11

it’s active on hold, but it basically shows up as inactive

12

and then the counties run a batch job prior to each

13

election to make sure they’re picking up those folks who

14

are going to be 18 by the day of the election and qualified

15

to vote.

16

People being changed to inactive after an

17

election, a Federal election is part of voter list

18

maintenance.

19

they send out notices whether it’s the National Change of

20

Address or the five-year notice.

21

activity on your voter registration record for five years,

22

the counties are required under our Voter Registration Law

23

to send a notice to them.

24

in inactive status.

25

you show up to vote or otherwise update your registration,

They’re required.

So the way this works,

If you don’t have any

At that point, you’d get placed

And then, you remain in inactive until
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you’ll be there.

2

election, your registration is cancelled.

3

And then after that second Federal

So you’ll often see after a Federal election,

4

that hundreds of thousands in some cases will be cancelled

5

all at once because they’ve gone through that two Federal

6

election period of time.

7

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

And so that’s what I

8

understood.

9

forward you the data sets w e ’re talking about where you can

I had gotten that information, but I will

10

see where they switched to active, voted, and then they

11

switched to inactive afterwards, or they’re showing up in

12

the SURE system as inactive.

13

couldn’t -- they didn’t understand it either.

I asked the county, they

14

And so then, I get into, so an article that just

15

came out yesterday, again, just because, you know, I think

16

the SURE system is the challenge right now, so I ’m all in

17

favor of the modernization, but Pennsylvania just spent

18

four years fighting transparency and hiding mistakes.

19

In 2017, Pennsylvania publicly acknowledged that,

20

what they called was a programming glitch that was with the

21

Department of Transportation Motor Voter.

22

allowed foreign nationals to register to vote for decades.

23

And so, the Public Interest Legal Foundation did

When they

24

a right to know for records.

25

extent of the problem and the actions taken by the

They wanted to know the
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Department of State to fix the errors in the official voter

2

lists and they were denied repeatedly.

3

court or they went to court to try to get access to this

4

and it just took a Judge who ruled that yes, that you do

5

have to give this information.

They were taken to

So why would the State continue to challenge

6
7

that?

I mean, when w e ’re trying to address, we know

8

there’s -- it’s a rather antiquated system at this point.

9

W e ’re having challenge with it.

Why would it take, you

10

know, four years and a national fight to try to get this

11

data, this information?
MR. MARKS:

12

Well, I mean, you know, the

13

Department is very protective of every registered voter’s

14

data.

15

So it’s not unusual for us.

16

public data available and, you know, we actually publish or

17

you can order online an entire list of every registered

18

voter in the Commonwealth and it has that personal

19

identifying information redacted.

20

There’s personal identifying information in there.
You know, there’s a lot of

But this specific issue was as you mentioned, you

21

know, in litigation.

22

something that is normal voter list maintenance, it’s not

23

required by statute, it’s not even provided for by statute,

24

but, you know, the Department did an analysis, you know,

25

via it’s Office of Chief Counsel and, you know, that

And this is not -- the issue was not
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litigation moved forward and, you know, I want to be

2

careful because I believe there’s still some ongoing

3

litigation-related to this issue and I don’t want to, you

4

know, I don’t want to talk out of school, but, you know, we

5

jealously protect private information of voters and w e ’ll

6

continue to do that.

7

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Right.

But I mean, I ’ve

8

gotten hundreds, well, probably millions of records that

9

w e ’ve been able to get that show the voter and their

10

information and just when -- which vote, which elections

11

they voted in and that was the kind of information they

12

wanted.

13

They wanted to see their actual history of that.
So, and again, w e ’re just trying to build

14

confidence in the system, people want to see, okay, look,

15

here’s how it works.

16

doing is just explaining the process that people don’t

17

understand.

18

here, you went off, you went on, this is why you would have

19

gone on because you’ve reengaged.

20

this many years and now you have, you’re active.

21

know, when you have this, again, it just sows the seeds of

22

doubt.

23

And that’s a lot of times what I ’m

So when I pull up a list and I can say see

You hadn’t voted for
But, you

And so then that goes to my last question that I

24

have is the vendor issue.

25

testimony that gives me a little pause here is the vendors.

There’s one thing in your
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It says the SURE vote vendor will compare the number of

2

eligible voters by county from a statewide list of

3

registered voters against the number of ballots cast in the

4

election night report module.

5

also push the configured election reporting structure from

6

SURE vote to the ENR module where the configuration will be

7

proofed by both county and state users to ensure accuracy.

8

It just looks like we're giving the vendor a lot

9

And then the vendor will

of -- and maybe I'm just understanding it wrong, but it

10

looks like we're giving the vendor a lot of autonomy here

11

just putting faith in hey, that the system's going to have

12

all the accurate data which we don't think that the SURE

13

system has right now and, you know, it's going to tabulate

14

and, you know, push all this information out.

15

accountability, how are we getting it with that component

16

of it?
MR. MARKS:

17

The vendor

Well, I mean, the Department has a

18

contract with a vendor and we have non-disclosure

19

agreements and other, you know, there's a lot of language

20

they have to sign off on related to the security of the

21

system while they're working it, as well as, the

22

confidentiality of certain data that they may be working

23

with.

24

Right now, they're working on election night

25

returns files which are basically, you know, candidate
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information and then ultimately election returns, you know.

2

So it is something though that’s covered in our contract

3

with any vendor who supplies support to the Department of

4

State.

5

I do want to say something just real quickly and

6

then I want to answer a question you asked Yvonne earlier

7

if the Chair -

8

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

9

MR. MARKS:

Sure.

-- will indulge me.

But, you know,

10

there’s a lot about, you know, people talk about this as if

11

there was some golden age of election administration.

12

I don’t know when that would have been.

13

certainly wasn’t the 100 years after reconstruction where

14

people were systematically denied their right to vote.

15

I would argue it certainly didn’t include the 30 to 40

16

years before the Help America Vote Act where you could be

17

registered in multiple counties and nobody would know any

18

different because each county maintained its own records.

19

And

I mean, it

And

I would argue that our voter registration records

20

through our statewide system through our membership in

21

ERIC, our records are cleaner than they’ve ever been at any

22

point in history.

23

problems and that we still have data that needs to be

24

cleaned up on a regular basis and that we can move forward

25

and that’s really why w e ’re doing the SURE modernization

I ’ll concede that there are still
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project.

2
3

But a lot of people talk as if there was some
golden age of election administration -

4

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

5

MR. MARKS:

6

So —

-- and I don’t know when that would

have been.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

7

—

yeah.

So I think the

8

issue is moreover is that we are now using, you know, more

9

advanced technology, one and two, would be the mail-in

10

voting.

11

in multiple counties, right, it would be difficult for them

12

to show up in each of those counties and vote, right?

So while somebody, yes, they could be registered

13

MR. MARKS:

14

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Exactly.
And it would be, there

15

would be a more accountable because there’s different

16

standards for mail-in and absentee, so their only other

17

option would have been absentee, so there would have been a

18

record there of that as well.

19

easy now because of the mail-in ballot and so, I think

20

people are just more heightened on, you know, how -

So it’s just a little more

21

MR. MARKS:

22

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Right.
-- accurate is our data.

23

So I think that’s more the issue.

24

evolve, right, what -- where are the checks and balances on

25

there.

As we continue to

And then the vendor one, that contract, that’s
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available like we can pull that up online.

2

that?

3
4

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

Correct, for

It’s out on the Department of

General Services -

5

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

6

MR. MARKS:

7

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

—

Okay.

website.
Yeah.

Because I go back

8

to the vendor accountability.

Our vendor that we used in

9

York County initially, you know, advised the county, you

10

know, you just need one standing machine per precinct,

11

right?

12

election.

13

another thing that, you know, they didn’t really explain

14

well, that added, you know, a whole nother issue for voter

15

confidence that was there.

16

And we stood for three hours in an off-year
And then they, you know, the Sharpies was

So that’s my concern with -- as far as what -

17

the vendors that w e ’re using and what accountability that

18

they have, but thank you.

19

MR. MARKS:

You’re welcome.

And if I may, I

20

think you, Representative, asked about write-in votes

21

earlier or you had an exchange with Yvonne about write-in

22

votes and maybe I ’m misremembering.

23
24
25

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Oh, it was about the

precinct levels and what the capacity was -
MR. MARKS:

Oh, yes, yes.
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1
2

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

—

at the precinct

levels.

3

MR. MARKS:

You know, I did want to mention

4

that’s something that the General Assembly,

5

low hanging fruit that the General Assembly could take up.

6

I think that’s

The term write-in vote isn’t even used in our

7

election code.

8

there’s only two sections that even deal with it.

9

basically mandates that the county count every write-in

It’s called an irregular ballot and I think
And it

10

vote exactly as it appears.

11

certification process for write-ins or something, that way

12

counties can weed through.

13

A lot of states have a pre

There was a big issue in last year’s election

14

where you had a lot of local offices where you didn’t have

15

nominees.

16

of names and the counties had to manually go through all of

17

those.

18

So people were writing in, you know, thousands

So there are some models that other states use,

19

you know, a lot of states use precertification where if

20

you’re truly running a write-in campaign and you’re not

21

just writing in the name of a dead president or, you know,

22

Mickey Mouse or whatever, you can file some paperwork with

23

the county before the fact, then that way, the county can

24

focus on those write-in votes that are, you know, true

25

write-in campaigns versus having to go through all of this,
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you know, lengthy process to adjudicate individual write-in

2

votes.

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

I was just going to

4

point out, I think that contract is like 800 pages, so make

5

sure you have plenty of ink in your printer.

6

Next up, Representative Nelson.

7

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

8
9
10
11

It's good to see you again.
MR. MARKS:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I know we were -

Good to see you.

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

I know we were both at

the Senate hearing yesterday -

12

MR. MARKS:

13

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

14

My questions stem from in your testimony on Page

Yes.
—

following each other.

15

2, just there's a very short paragraph that said we are not

16

actively revising existing guidance, you know, as it

17

relates coming up to the primary elections.

18

I'd like to get a little bit into that hearing

19

subject yesterday about, you know, the private money,

20

election grants, or the Zuckerbucks.

21

years now since there was that large infusion of private

22

money, but the Department, have they looked at or

23

considered, you know, putting some formal, you know,

24

guidelines in place?

25

It's been a couple of

I mean, I think back to that big 2020 election
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and there were emails that were sent out like the night

2

before, hey, this is how you handle this.

3

Department internally working on anything?

4

very controversial, but can you touch on that at all?

5

was surprised that there’s still no guidance.

6

MR. MARKS:

Is the
Because it is
I

Well, I -- first of all, I don’t

7

expect that w e ’re going to see an influx of money into this

8

year’s election from third party sources.

9

difficult because, you know, money that may be coming to

And it’s

10

the Department of State, you know, as a, you know, donation

11

or even goods that are donated to the Department of State,

12

you know, our policy has been very clear.

13

We distribute that, whatever it is, whether it’s

14

hand sanitizer, you know, Anheuser-Busch, you know,

15

provided hand sanitizer to, you know, all over the country

16

and we distributed that equitably to the counties.

17

What yesterday’s hearing was about as I

18

understood it was third party money that was going directly

19

to the counties.

20

vetting procedure and I ’m not sure that the Department of

21

State is best equipped to weigh in on local government

22

issue like that.

23

And each of those counties has its own

You know, we try to stay in our lane of election

24

administration issues and I know there’s some, you know,

25

some tie there, but it, you know, it’s -- we have 67 County
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Boards of Elections.

2

election code in some ways because they are mostly made up

3

of the three county commissioners in each county.

4

know, how they spend money, how they raise money through

5

taxes, you know, that’s not something that’s direct, you

6

know, addressed in the election code.

7

They’re governed by the county

And, you

So I don’t expect that w e ’re going to see money

8

like that, number one.

9

kind of guidance the counties could give, other than the

And number two, I ’m not sure what

10

guidance we gave which is you need to talk to your

11

solicitor and go through whatever your vetting process is

12

to receive good and services from third party sources.

13

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Well, I would almost, you

14

know, it would be a good time while there’s no money

15

flowing to be able to address the issue because I think

16

some of that testimony the Department of State was

17

involved, you know, with individual counties and the

18

freedom of information request and the testimony about the

19

connections, you know, with previous secretary, you know,

20

and not just the Secretary of State, but also combined

21

emails with partisan organizations that were helping to

22

facilitate, you know, participation in those grants.

23

that goes back to that voter trust and confidence.

24
25

I mean, personally,

And

I view the Department of

State as a very, it’s a prestigious organization and, you
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know, with the history of ethical and balance behavior

2

managing, you know, our elections.

3

of information, you know, it puts some chink in that armor.

4

It’s -- the Department’s not taking any internal, you know,

5

steps to prohibit that type of thing.

6

people in the House went to jail years ago -

7

MR. MARKS:

8

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

9

Or like, I know

Yeah.
—

because of the

intermingling of government emails and political

10

activities.

11

about that at all?

12

Some of those freedom

Does the Department of State have guidelines

MR. MARKS:

I mean, I -- you know, I -- if you’re

13

talking about the, you know, providing guidance to the

14

counties versus guidance to our own staff -

15
16
17

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Talking about moving

forward, yes, with -
MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

I mean that’s something that

18

I ’d have to talk to our counsel about.

19

how much we can weigh in on something like that.

20

little bit outside of the election code.

21

Again, I don’t know
It’s a

You know, typically when you see donations coming

22

in to county and municipal governments, it’s to address

23

some natural disaster or something unrelated to elections.

24

This is -- this was a unique circumstance and you saw it

25

coming in, specifically to support election administration.
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I can certainly tell you what my expectation is

2

of our own staff.

3

going to do everything on a non-partisan basis.

4

everyone has their own political beliefs, I understand

5

that, but we don't bring them into the office.

6

to be an unbiased, you know, resource for counties, every

7

county, regardless of, you know, political affiliation of

8

its voters.

9

Chapman's expectation from everyone on our staff, that they

10

You know, my expectation is that we're
You know,

Our job is

And that's my expectation that Secretary

always act in a non-partisan fashion.
REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

11

I would agree with you.

12

I just would, you know, it would be potentially very

13

helpful if, you know, some of that clarification on hey,

14

this is -- we're not going to do what we did before again

15

or -

16

MR. MARKS:

17

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Right.
-- even maybe there are

18

emails that, you know, Secretary Chapman mentioned

19

yesterday that the Department of State did rigorously help,

20

you know, both Republican and Democratic counties.

21

just no -

22

MR. MARKS:

23

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

There's

Right.
-- email evidence of that

24

at all.

25

primary is not necessarily going to have an incentive, but

But again, as we try to look forward because the
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the November election may have -

2

MR. MARKS:

3

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Right.
—

a very large

4

incentive.

5

they’re Federal races and they’re Governor races and -

There are -- these are senate races.

6

MR. MARKS:

7

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

You know,

Right.
-- we once again could

8

have an effort and it would, I think it would help everyone

9

if the Department would consider establishing some type of

10

parameters.

11

put the Department of State in charge of all that money, so

12

that your office would be the receiver and then distribute.

13

That didn’t make it across the Governor’s desk, you know,

14

he vetoed it.

15

I know we had attempted through legislation to

I would just encourage now is the time that we

16

would, you know, either one disclose yes, there was

17

rigorous assistance of these Republican efforts as was

18

testified yesterday or hey, this is our, you know, here’s

19

out pathway forward because November is going to be here

20

and I can see that happening again, you know.

21

MR. MARKS:

Yep.

No, understood.

And I will

22

talk to our counsel about it and find out what, you know,

23

what the Department perhaps could do in terms of providing

24

guidance to counties without, you know, going beyond our,

25

you know, our authority and addressing something that is
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largely a local issue.

2

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Yeah, thank you.

I —

we

3

really do have the same goal here, I think.

4

it’s an opportunity that maybe we can address this in a -

5

MR. MARKS:

6

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

7

And, you know,

Right.
-- advance, you know, so

thank you.

8

MR. MARKS:

9

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Great.

10

MR. MARKS:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.
And to point out, I

12

mean, the emails that were -- you were there, you saw the

13

emails were at the Secretary’s level and in the Governor’s

14

office.

15

within that.

16

kind of like the people in charge of actually doing the

17

elections at the Department of State.

18

there or involvement or discussion around it.

19

I do want to bring that up to -

So no email came from you, your bureau at all
So I want to, I do want to highlight that

20

MR. MARKS:

21

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

22

agents and so, yeah.

23

MR. MARKS:

There’s nothing

I appreciate that.

Yeah.

So I just -

And I ’ll make -

-- yourself and your

I ’ll make one more comment.

24

You know, we heard yesterday, too, from the -- from one of

25

the counties that used money.

And it’s clear that this
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money was very helpful and they used it, you know, over

2

half of it on equipment that they desperately needed.

3

you know, whatever we do, we want to be careful that we are

4

not taking those opportunities away from counties to get

5

the things that they need.

6

So,

And I certainly, I think we all agree that

7

elections should be equitably and fully funded.

8

that looks like, you know, I ’m willing to have that

9

discussion.

And what

I think I can speak for the Secretary, too.

10

She’s willing to have that discussion with the legislature,

11

what does the model look like.

12

I think I testified last year before this

13

Committee if I recall correctly, about maybe setting up

14

grants or something.

15

Department or through DCED, but there are tools to address

16

these needs, so that counties won’t need to accept things

17

from third party services.

You know, whether it’s through the

18

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

19

following up with those remarks.

20

I completely agree.

And Mr. Chair, just in

I think the testifier from

21

Philadelphia, she did a great job of saying look, we wanted

22

this money and I think she even said I ’ll get it again

23

wherever I can.

You know, so -

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Right.
-- I think as we look
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forward, you know, these third party grants are not going

2

away and it would be in the best interest of everyone if we

3

can begin to work together to, you know, create some

4

guardrails -

5

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

Right.
-- whether it’s a

7

prohibition or it’s a hey, this is how w e ’re going to -

8

the State’s going to look at this because -

9

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:
REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

10

Yeah.
-- I agree with you, she

11

did a nice job in her testimony and, you know, they were

12

onboard and waiting for the next grant to arrive, so.

13

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

14

REPRESENTATIVE NELSON:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

16

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

17

Going back to the SURE system a little bit.

18

will it take to be able to use the ERIC system fully?
MR. MARKS:

19

Okay.
Thank you.
Representative Miller?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Really, the only thing that w e ’re not

20

currently using, a report that ERIC provides is the

21

deceased voter information.
REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

22

What

And what will it take for

23

the Department of State to be able to use that segment of

24

ERIC?

25

MR. MARKS:

I forget which section of the
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election code, but it is the section of the election code

2

that requires the Department, Pennsylvania Department of

3

Health to provide information about deceased voters.

4

believe Subsection B, the very next section provides a list

5

of things.

6

list, but other resources that the counties can use to

7

remove deceased voters.

8
9

I

And it's -- there's only two things on the

We would like to see an amendment that would open
it up to, you know, other official sources of deceased

10

voter information, including -- and we don't even

11

necessarily have to name the ERIC program.

12

program is getting it through an agreement with Social

13

Security Administration so, you know, it might be enough to

14

just say other official sources of information.
REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

15
16

So, essentially

saying a legislative fix to be -

17

MR. MARKS:

18

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

19

Okay.

The ERIC

Right.
-- able to use that data

fully, okay.

20

MR. MARKS:

21

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

Right.
It took a lawsuit for the

22

Department of State to remove 21,000 deceased voters from

23

the rolls.

24
25

Why did it take a lawsuit?
MR. MARKS:

Well, again, it -- you know, we don't

have the authority to unilaterally remove voters.

And
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counties didn’t have the statutory authority to remove

2

voters.

3

some counties I thought would be onboard.

4

talked about maybe using this information and they said

5

look, it’s not authorized in the statute.

And I remember arguing with -- that surprisingly
You know, we

And ultimately, we looked at it and we agreed

6
7

that the language is very tight.

8

about what can be used and it excludes other sources of

9

deceased voter information, so that’s why it took a

It’s very prescriptive

10

lawsuit.

11

agreement to use that ERIC data one time and we really

12

would like to be able to use it on an ongoing basis through

13

our membership in the ERIC program.

You know, the Department entered into an

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

14

If the Department felt

15

that it couldn’t use the ERIC data, why did it enter into

16

an agreement to use the very data that it felt it couldn’t

17

use?

18

MR. MARKS:

Well, again, that was an agreement,

19

you know, that came out of litigation against the

20

Department.

21

potentially settle that case.

22

Departments legal counsel, so I can’t give you a detailed

23

explanation of, you know, what the, you know, what the

24

theory, legal theory behind doing that was.

25

we want to use that data, but we believe, and our counsel

You know, we thought it was a way to
You know, I ’m not the

But, you know,
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1

believes that in order to use that data, the election code

2

has to be loosened up to allow other official sources of

3

deceased voter information.

4

be able to use the data.

And if that happens, we will

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

5

It wasn't a ruling of a

6

Judge, it was a decision by the Department of State to

7

enter into that agreement.

8

Department of State couldn't continually view the use of

9

that data on an ongoing basis.
MR. MARKS:

10

So I'm curious as to why the

Can you reply to that?

Well, again, I'm not the Department's

11

legal counsel, so I'm -- I, you know, I probably won't be

12

able to completely answer your questions.

13

know, having worked with attorneys throughout my career,

14

you know, I think there are situations where, you know, the

15

attorneys, you know, will decide here's where we think this

16

case will end and maybe it behooves us to enter into an

17

agreement.

I know, you

But I, you know, I don't know that I can answer

18
19

your question because I'm an election administrator.

20

Here's my answer.

21

but we don't have the statutory authority to do it.

22

give it to us, we'll use it on an ongoing basis.

23

provide data to ERIC every 60 days.

24

60 days.

25

that ERIC provides, we just don't believe that we have the

My answer is we want to use the data,
If you

We

We get reports every

And we would love to fully utilize all the tools
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1

statutory authority to do it now.

2
3

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

Will it take another

lawsuit to remove deceased voters from the rolls?

4

MR. MARKS:

Well, again, you know, I don’t -- I ’m

5

not the Department’s legal counsel.

6

the simple solution is, and I don’t want to sound like I ’m

7

chiding the Committee, but I think the simplest solution is

8

to add language to amend the election code.

9

of anyone who disagrees with the idea of using this tool to

I, you know, I think

I ’m not aware

10

remove deceased voters.

11

legislation, then it won’t take a lawsuit or anything else

12

to address this.

You know, I think putting it in

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

13

Okay.

I want to move on

14

to another topic at this point.

15

Department of State cannot issue guidance to counties on

16

how to handle uniformly donations from third parties?

17

you saying the Department of State cannot issue guidance on

18

that topic?

19

MR. MARKS:

Are you saying that the

Are

I ’m saying that it is not typical for

20

the Department to issue guidance beyond election guidance.

21

You know this is donations to county and local governments

22

is typically beyond what the Department of State deals

23

with.

24

certainly issue guidance on election administration issues.

25

Donations coming into county and local

We deal with election administration and we
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governments and what the rules are around those are not

2

necessarily -- well, not -- I won’t say not necessarily,

3

they're not governed by the election code.

4

governed, you know, probably by the county code and maybe

5

the municipal code.

6

They're

So I just don't know what kind of guidance we

7

could issue.

8

our counsel about it.

9

you know, what does that guidance look like without, you

10
11

As I said previously,

I'm happy to talk to

You know, if we can issue guidance,

know, overstepping our boundaries.
I don't want to inadvertently prevent a

12

municipality from getting a, you know, a new snowplow from

13

a third party that they desperately need because we've

14

issued some guidance, you know, ham-handed guidance that

15

doesn't, you know, take into consideration, you know, these

16

other laws that may govern, you know, counties' ability to

17

do things like that.

18

governments receive donations from local companies and I

19

don't want to do anything that jeopardizes that or

20

discourages that. You know, I think there's been a lot of

21

success with those, you know, public and private

22

partnerships.

I know that happens.

I know local

23

So I don't, you know, it's something I need to

24

talk to our counsel about what that guidance looks like.

25

And I'm certainly happy to talk to the General Assembly,

97
1

too, about what, you know, what kind of, you know,

2

guidelines maybe should be placed in the statute to address

3

those issues.
But, you know, I ’ll go back to the point I made

4
5

earlier.

6

want to have is a discussion about how elections are funded

7

in Pennsylvania.

8

years.

9

What I want to have and I think we all should

They’ve become more complex over the

Right now, with the exception of special

10

elections and reimbursement for military and overseas

11

civilian balance, counties bear 100 percent of the cost of

12

administering elections.

13

General Assembly or for the State of Federal Government to

14

pick up the entire tab.

15

to be able to share the cost of elections.

16

And they’re not asking for the

They just want a share.

They want

You know, I ’ve heard, I believe CCAP has

17

testified on this before.

18

its share, the State paying its share, and county and local

19

government paying its share.

20

out there, the National Conference of State Legislatures

21

adds information about how each state funds elections and

22

there’s a variety of models, some they reimburse counties.

23

I think one state it’s a $1.25 per voter.

24

based on the level of election.

25

Statewide election, the State picks up those costs.

The Federal Government paying

And there are a lot models

Others it’s

So if it’s a Federal or
If
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1

it’s county or local election, the county and local

2

government picks up the cost.

3

I think that’s the conversation we should be

4

having.

5

adequately funded, so that they don’t need to look at other

6

resources.

7

How do we make sure that our counties are

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

Did the Department of

8

State issue guidance-related to COVID ideas over the last

9

election?
MR. MARKS:

10
11

Over the last election meaning the

2021 election?

12

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

13

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

We did issue guidance and we left it

14

up during the 2021 election about, you know, COVID-19

15

mitigation measures at the polling places, COVID-19

16

recommendations for facilities that were serving as polling

17

places.

18

point, but yes, we did issue some guidance specifically

19

related to COVID-19 mitigation.

I think that guidance has been archived at this

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

20

The reason I ask that is

21

because if -- that’s clearly a Department of Health issue,

22

yet the Department of State issued guidance to that and it

23

wasn’t in your lane.

24

MR. MARKS:

25

Health.

So why couldn’t the county -
Well, we consulted the Department of
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1

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

2

MR. MARKS:

3

Why couldn’t —

Our guidance actually followed -- so

masking, and we actually -

4

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

5

MR. MARKS:

But -

-- didn’t follow the Department of

6

Health’s recommendation on that one because, you know, we

7

are asked very explicitly about masks.

8

people to wear masks in the polling place and ultimately,

9

we decided that it wasn’t a good idea for the Department to

Can we require

10

weigh in on that and we encouraged people to wear masks in

11

polling places, but we couldn’t mandate it because they are

12

there exercising their constitutional right to vote.

13

So I, you know, it -- we did it and it followed

14

the Department of Health guidance.

15

guidance was explicitly though related to elections and

16

mitigating the spread of COVID-19 at polling places.

17

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

And, you know, the

Right.

And I understand

18

that.

19

that’s why in that regard, I think in this line, outside

20

third party money coming into the State to impact elections

21

is also within lane of the Department of State, and

22

therefore, good issue uniform guidance.

23

And, you know, I think that was appropriate and

MR. MARKS:

Right.

And as I said, I ’m willing to

24

talk to our counsel about it and find out is there a role

25

that the Department could play in issuing guidance,
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1

specifically on that issue and what that looks like.

2

REPRESENTATIVE MILLER:

All right.

3

MR. MARKS:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

6

Thank you, Deputy Secretary for coming and

Thank you.
Representative Diamond?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7

joining us once again for the millionth time.

8

appreciate your willingness to come before us.

9

Thank you.

I have a series of questions for you.

Sure

Let me

10

just start with this.

11

website right now and it -- there are two sections of

12

guidance and directives on the website.

13

me what the difference is between the guidance that’s on

14

the first page and the guidance that is on the archived

15

elections directive and guidance?
MR. MARKS:

16

I ’m looking at the Department’s

And can you tell

Archives would be guidance that’s

17

either out-of-date or that w e ’re currently reviewing to

18

make updates to.

19

guidance unless things change.

20

litigation regarding dates on envelopes and other things

21

that are going on.

22

you know, we may have to respond to things, but we do tweak

23

our guidance, periodically review it to make sure it’s up-

24

to-date.

25

make sure that it’s easily and readily understood by

W e ’re not going to be issuing any new
I mean, we still have

And we have the Act 77 litigation so,

Sometimes it’s just simplifying the language to
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1

everyone.

2

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

3

MR. MARKS:

Okay.

So that’s really the difference.

4

Archived either means it’s something that’s out-of-date,

5

but we leave it on the website so people can reference it

6

or it’s something that we may be reviewing to determine if

7

we have to make any updates to it.
REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

8
9

Okay.

So I ’m looking

and I ’ve reviewed all the guidance that’s on here.

The

10

only guidance that’s provided for drop boxes is actually in

11

the archive section which you said is out of, mostly out-

12

of-date and that’s from August 19 of 2020.

13

archive section.

14

drop boxes secure receptacles.

15

It’s in the

It’s under Section 2.2 and actually calls

So are you saying that there is not any up-to-

16

date guidance for counties for drop boxes with the

17

Department right now?

18
19

MR. MARKS:

Well, no, that’s one that’s under

review.

20

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

21

MR. MARKS:

22

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

For necessary updates.
So given that there’s no

23

statutory provisions from drop boxes and no up-to-date

24

Department guidance for drop boxes are you saying that

25

maybe the counties shouldn’t be putting drop boxes out
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1

because there is no kind of rules around them?

2

MR. MARKS:

3

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

4

MR. MARKS:

No, I ’m not saying that at all.
Okay.

You know, I think the Department has

5

been clear and the Supreme Court agreed with the

6

Department’s interpretation that counties among their, you

7

know, within their discretion and they have a considerable

8

amount of discretion outlined in the election code, can

9

provide secure receptacles, secure drop boxes for voters to

10

deliver their ballots directly to the custody of the County

11

Board of Elections.

12

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

13

MR. MARKS:

14

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

But that —

And that has not changed.
-- standing guidance

15

which is now archived and may be out-of-date and you’re in

16

review on, that actually resulted in some lawsuits.

17

you know, those lawsuits indicate there’s some real issues

18

there.

19

May 17 primary or are we just going to let it hang out

20

there in the wind for now?

21

And,

So are we going to have updated guidance before the

MR. MARKS:

Well, like I said, that’s being

22

reviewed just for, you know, tweaks.

23

it’s not like w e ’re going to change the guidance unless

24

there’s an adverse ruling from the Court.

25

W e ’re not going to -

You know, I heard earlier the testimony about
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1

some of the confusion created by guidance and I want to be

2

-- I, you know, I think people should be fair.

3

certainly willing to admit when we make mistakes and it

4

happens, everyone makes mistakes.

5

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

6

MR. MARKS:

I'm

Yeah.

But the vast majority of the

7

confusion that occurred in 2020, occurred because the

8

status quo was changing frequently -
REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

9
10

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

-- as a result of litigation.

So,

11

you know, counties have the discretion to use drop boxes.

12

That was our interpretation.

13

ruled on the issue, the Supreme Court agreed with that.

14

Had they disagreed, we would have changed course and we

15

would have updated our guidance accordingly.

16

can use secure drop off receptacles and we'll change that

17

guidance if and when a court decides that counties can't or

18

if the General Assembly enacts legislation that precludes

19

their use.

20

Before the Supreme Court

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

So counties

So what you're saying is

21

you're not going to be updating that guidance that is now

22

archived unless the court orders you to.

23

MR. MARKS:

Right, not -

24

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

25

MR. MARKS:

Okay.

-- substantively, no.
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1

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

Are you aware of

2

any counties providing additional security around these

3

drop boxes than before?

4

general -- or municipal election and this primary?

5

are you aware of any counties that have said hey, w e ’re

6

going to do this around our drop boxes now because we

7

recognize there’s some problems?

8

babysit the counties like that, but -
MR. MARKS:

9
10

A difference between like the last
Has -

And it’s not your job to

Anecdotally, but well, we do survey

the counties.

11

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

12

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

And we will be sending out very

13

shortly our pre-election survey asking counties, you know,

14

if they’re going to use drop boxes, where those locations

15

are if they’re going to use additional county offices and

16

where those locations will be and w e ’ll ask them to submit

17

to us information about those and how they, you know, how

18

they secure them and where those locations will be.

19

our guidance about, you know, how counties go about taking

20

custody of the ballots and making sure that they maintain

21

chain of custody, w e ’ll continue to provide that guidance

22

as well.

23

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

And

So there recently

24

was a video that I saw of, and I believe it was from

25

Montgomery County, where there was an individual standing
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1

at a drop box and I ’m not sure how many it was.

2

to be about a dozen or 15 ballots that she -- allegedly

3

ballots that, I think it was a female was depositing.

4

on further inspection, the county said, well, these were

5

all, you know, because people sent to this to me and they

6

go that’s voter fraud.

7

It looked

And

And I ’m like well, wait a minute, you don’t know

8

what those ballots are.

9

county said, well, this is a person from, I don’t know, a

Let’s find out more.

And then the

10

long-term care facility or something like that.

11

there’s some confusion over whether that actually counts as

12

a household and statutorily whether that was actually

13

legitimate for that person to drop those ballots, not

14

questioning the validity of the ballots themselves, but the

15

delivery method.

16

And now

And then the Lehigh County District Attorney,

17

h e ’s the only prosecutor in the State who actually kind of

18

did an investigation on the use of these drop boxes.

19

concluded that the only way to prevent illegal voting and

20

fraudulent voting by a drop box is by placing a human being

21

at each drop box.

22

Bill 1300 which was vetoed and House Bill 1800 which has

23

not gotten through the legislative process yet.

24
25

He

And we did address this issue in House

But has the Department reviewed the Lehigh County
D A ’s work and will the Department in the future support
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1

some legislation that we would put forward to prevent this

2

kind of illegal and, you know, activity at the drop boxes?

3

You know, because -- and I know that we have

4

talked a lot about cameras and that sort of thing, but the

5

truth of the matter is in my mind, a camera is not going to

6

stop somebody from going up and dumping a bunch of ballots

7

in a drop box.

8

when we were talking about the secret ballot, once the

9

ballot’s in the box, you can’t go in and retrieve it and

And once they’re in there, as I discussed

10

say well, because you don’t know who, you know, if there’s

11

a thousand or 100 ballots in that box and somebody comes up

12

and drops 15 in, you don’t know which 15 they were.

13

So will the Department actually support

14

legislation that we put forward that actually really does

15

treat these and I think w e ’ve had this conversation in ELAB

16

as well, that I believe these drop boxes are more like a

17

polling place and they should have a human being there

18

watching what’s going on to prevent that person from

19

dropping 15 ballots in that because this is like a bunch of

20

apples.

21

bunch because we don’t know which ones are good and which

22

ones aren’t and that sort of thing.

23

Once you put those 15 in, you’ve spoiled the whole

So I guess my question is, you know, we still

24

have this uncertainty about these drop boxes and will the

25

Department support legislation that moves these closer to
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1

being treated more like a polling place where we have a bit

2

more of human observations going on and prevention of

3

dropping multiple ballots in there.
MR. MARKS:

4

Whether the Department will support,

5

you know, a specific piece of legislation, it would depend

6

on what’s in it -

7

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

8

MR. MARKS:

9

details are.

Yeah.

-- what that looks like, what the

You know, I will say that, you know, I think

10

what you’re imagining is if you’re treating it like a

11

polling place, you’re going to have watchers, you’re going

12

to have other things.

13

Certainly, we have told counties that it is a

14

best practice to either, you know, have manned drop boxes

15

or have video surveillance on the drop boxes and that leads

16

to somebody reviewing it.
W e ’re reviewing the Lehigh County information.

17
18

thought it was interesting that the, you know, that the

19

Lehigh County District Attorney released a report, but

20

decided not to prosecute any of those cases and I don’t

21

know why that’s the case and I guess w e ’d have to ask the

22

DA.

23

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

24

strange thing was -

25

MR. MARKS:

But --

Well, I guess the

I
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1

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

-- there were so many

2

people on there, they could identify a few of them, but

3

since they can't prosecute them all, they're not going to

4

prosecute a few of them.

5

perplexing because we're talking about a drop box, I

6

believe, it was 7,196 ballots were in those drop boxes and

7

he declared, I think it was 288 individuals that they could

8

see on video that actually dropped more than one, some more

9

than two, but you can identify a few of them, but why

10

wouldn't you then prosecute the few of the -- I mean,

11

that's not -

And I find that a little

12

MR. MARKS:

13

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

14
15
16
17
18

And there may be more -
-- a question for you to

answer.
MR. MARKS:

Right.

I mean, there may be more

information -
REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Yeah, yeah, yeah, that's

prosecutorial discretion, yeah.

19

MR. MARKS:

-- and obviously, the DA's going to

20

have to answer why, you know.

21

mind, there are circumstances with disabled voters -

There, you know, keep in

22

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

23

MR. MARKS:

Right.

-- under which it is perfectly

24

appropriate for somebody to deliver another person's ballot

25

and they have to be authorized by that individual --
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1
2

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

And it has to be

included in with the ballot.

3

MR. MARKS:

You know, our guidance -

4

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

5

MR. MARKS:

6

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

7

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

-- is clear on that.
Right.

All of our information that we post

8

on our website for voters is clear that you can only

9

deliver your own ballot unless you meet this very narrow,

10

you know, exception.

And, you know, when we do messaging

11

to voters, you know, prior to each primary election, we

12

also remind, we remind them to seal their ballot in the

13

secrecy envelope.

14

to date.

We remind them to sign.

15

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

16

MR. MARKS:

We remind them

Yeah.

And we remind them that they can only

17

return their own ballot and, you know, hopefully, through

18

voter education, w e ’ll address a lot of those issues.

19

you know, again, you know, I ’m not going to say w e ’re going

20

to support, you know, a hypothetical piece of legislation

21

till we see it.

22

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

23

MR. MARKS:

24
25

But,

I get it.

It would really depend on what’s in

it.
REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

I get it.

And
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1

then so just to sum up.

2

archived.

3

Probably won't change it before the primary election.

4

a court order would really force your hand to change it,

5

but right now, it's archived and it may or may not be out-

6

of-date.

7

The guidance on drop boxes is

You are reviewing it.

MR. MARKS:

You may change it.

Yeah, not out-of-date.

Again, you

8

know, we make tweaks to guidance a lot of times to, you

9

know, we get -- counties ask us questions on an ongoing

10

And

basis.

11

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

12

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

And we always reserve the right to

13

respond to those questions.

14

a lot made about well, the Department's sending last-minute

15

guidance.

16

prefer to, but because we've heard from, you know, eight or

17

ten counties and they're confused about an issue and the

18

Department wants to provide clarity.

19

appropriate.

You know, I know there's been

Sometimes we're sending it then not because we

I think that's our role.

20

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

21

MR. MARKS:

I think that's
I think -

Right.

-- it would be, you know, I think it

22

would be irresponsible for us not to try to give them

23

guidance if they're asking questions.

24
25

So but yes, our guidance about drop boxes has not
changed.

It's not going to change substantively before the
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1

primary or even before the November election unless the

2

status quo changes.

3

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

4

MR. MARKS:

Okay.

And that may be done by a court, it

5

might be done by this body and the Governor working

6

together, you know, that’s -- you know, w e ’re always going

7

to respond -

8

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

9

MR. MARKS:

10
11
12
13

Right.

-- you know, to changes in the status

quo and w e ’ll respond appropriately.
REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

Okay.

And thank you.

And Mr. Chairman, if I may just go one more question.
Deputy Secretary, it’s recently come to my

14

attention both from voters and from a couple elections

15

directors that folks have received either emails or text

16

messages inviting them to apply for an absentee ballot.

17

And those folks have never given their cell phone number or

18

their email address to the Department of State.

19

conclude from those multiple reports, that the Department

20

of State is somehow reaching out to potentially other

21

departments in order to obtain those cell phone numbers or

22

email addresses and that comes to my attention.

23

I can only

And as you were responding to Representative

24

Keefer’s questions, you said that the Department, and I

25

don’t know exactly what words you said, but that you
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1

jealously guard the personal information of voters.

2

I'm wondering when you do that, when you have that, we

3

really want to protect the privacy of our voters.

4

And

Is the Department, in fact, reaching out to other

5

departments to obtain cell phone numbers, say like PennDOT

6

or email addresses that the Department itself does not have

7

and was not provided to the Department in order to generate

8

text messages and/or emails to those people to invite them

9

to apply for a mail-in ballot?

10

MR. MARKS:

Well, we do voter outreach on a

11

consistent basis to educate voters about changes.

12

do use data from other state agencies, sister state

13

agencies to do that.

14

know, we want to make sure we can reach out to as many

15

voters as possible.

16

think now, permanent mail-in voters and if you add

17

permanent absentee voters to that list, we have well over a

18

million of those individuals on that list.

19

And we

And it's a variety of agencies.

You

You know, we have over a million, I

So we do make an effort to try to get in contact

20

with all of those folks to remind them of deadlines, to

21

remind them of voting options, to remind them of, you know,

22

hours when the polling places are open, what their options

23

are not only for voting by mail, but also voting in-person.

24

And again, reminding them of all the requirements, you

25

know, of voting by mail and voting in-person.

So, yes, the
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1

Department has obtained information from sister agencies to

2

assist with that effort.

3

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

And what, under what

4

statutory authority is the Department doing that because I

5

-- and this is why I ’m asking.

6

very, very irate with me.

7

people my email address or my phone number.

8

may have renewed his driver’s license online or something

9

where he provided his cell phone or his email address.

I had one person who was

He said I never gave those
And he said he

He

10

said I am incensed that these bureaucrats are pulling my

11

personal information from other departments and sharing it.

12

And he said if they’re sharing it with other departments,

13

what other people are they going to share my private -

14

because people consider their cell phone numbers private

15

and their email addresses private.

16

anybody would share his cell phone number.

17

to give that to PennDOT or whatever agency it was, but he

18

chose not to give it to the Department of State.

19

So he was incensed that
I mean, he had

So why would the Department of State do such a

20

thing and where is the statutory authority for you -- for

21

the Department to do that?

22

MR. MARKS:

I ’ll have to get back to you on it,

23

but I know it was vetted with our counsel.

24

it is -- again, it’s part of our voter outreach.

25

to make sure that we are reaching the largest number of

So, you know,
We want
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1

voters irrespective of their political affiliation.

2

you know, we use information from other agencies to make

3

sure we could do that outreach.

4

get back to the committee after talking with our counsel.

5

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

So we,

But I ’ll get, I ’ll have to

We often do hear from

6

testifies before our committees that they will get back to

7

us.

8

on what statutory authority the Department of State has to

9

interrogate other departments for personal data for the

10

purpose that you -- or for any purpose for that reason.

11

I mean, I don’t care that it’s about mailing.

I would be highly interested when you get back to us

12

Like we give our information to certain government agencies

13

because we have to.

14

with anybody, even if it’s another government agency.

15

think this is a very troubling development.

We never expect them to share that
So I

And again, I have heard this from numerous voters

16
17

who swear they have never given their cell phone number or

18

their email address to the Department of State, but

19

acknowledge that they have.

20

Department of Human Services for whatever Human Services

21

benefits they may be.

22

going on.

23

And maybe it’s even the

But they were incensed that this is

So I will be highly interested in your response.

24

And it will be one that I will personally follow-up with

25

you on if we don’t get a response in this Committee like
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1

sometimes, many times we don’t get actual follow-ups that

2

w e ’re promised in these hearings.

3

I appreciate it.

4

MR. MARKS:

Sure.

So thank you very much,

Thank you.

I wanted to make

5

one point.

6

whether it’s text message or an email, there’s an opt out

7

option, so if you don’t ever want to receive one again, you

8

have the ability to opt out.

9

There -- everyone can opt out of those messages

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

That’s great, but

10

sometimes I just don’t want people to have my cell phone

11

number, period.

12

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

13

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

I don’t know if there’s

14

an opt in or opt out, so in the constituents when they went

15

to PennDOT to do online stuff which is actually very

16

convenient or voter -- or car registration stuff, I don’t

17

know if there a button to click don’t contact me any

18

further and that’s relayed over because you can kind of

19

capture those individuals who may not want to be on a

20

Listserv of some sort.

21

MR. MARKS:

22

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

23

Right.
And that’s probably

going from the agencies you’re pulling it from -

24

MR. MARKS:

25

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yes, yeah.
—

and verifying.

That
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1

may be -

2
3

MR. MARKS:

Yeah, when I say opt out, I ’m talking

about the messages, so -

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5

MR. MARKS:

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

7

MR. MARKS:

8

-- if you get a text -
Right.

-- message from the Department or an

email and you don’t want to receive -
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MR. MARKS:

10
11

Right.

Right.

-- then further, there’s an opt out

option.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

12

Right.

What I ’m saying

13

is for those agencies that have that information and

14

they’ve asked the citizens of Pennsylvania,

15

I ’m giving this to you, but don’t ever contact me for

16

anything else.

17

the like web form, but don’t ever contact me, I don’t want

18

to hear you from you.

We have that on our email.

19

MR. MARKS:

20

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

I don’t -- like

Like we have

Right.
I just want what I want

21

now.

22

those, maybe those aren’t sent to you for a further follow-

23

up, that way you don’t have individuals who like I want my

24

vehicle registration done, here’s my email address to get

25

it.

It may be helpful in the future if that’s shared or

I don’t want to hear from any state agency anything
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1

else moving forward.

2

minimize that where you can do your voter outreach without

3

violating the privacy of like just on the front end opt in

4

and opt out.

That might be a way to kind of

5

MR. MARKS:

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

It’s just a thought.

7

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

If I just may clarify

Right.

8

one point.

9

had heard this complaint from voters that he was having

The one election director that I talked to, he

10

lunch with, his friends who are just voters.

11

put it forth to him, they were actually pointing the finger

12

at him because it was not clear in the messages who the

13

message was coming from.

14

Board of Elections.

And they had

They assumed it was the local

So beyond the point of, you know, getting data

15
16

from other departments, the messaging was not clear enough

17

that they, those voters knew it was coming from the

18

Department of State.

19

county.

20

friends were accusing him of stealing his personal data, so

They thought it was coming from the

So he was very defensive about it because his

21
22

MR. MARKS:

23

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

24
25

Yeah.
-- and I think you

understand that.
MR. MARKS:

I mean, I ’ll doublecheck, but I think
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1

we are clear on the messages -

2

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

3

MR. MARKS:

4

Okay.

-- that it’s being sent from the

Department of State, but I will doublecheck that as well.

5

REPRESENTATIVE DIAMOND:

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you.
A couple follow-up

7

questions.

In your testimony, you make mention of the new

8

SURE system to make "over-the-counter" mail-in more

9

convenient for voters and counties.

Do you know which

10

counties intend to offer that voting method to voters

11

during the 2022 election cycle?
MR. MARKS:

12

Well, actually, all counties have to

13

offer over-the-county, over-the-counter opportunity to vote

14

by whether it’s at their primary office or another

15

location.

16

We -- what we heard from counties and during 2020

17

is it was, you know, the SURE system was not well equipped

18

to handle one-off requests.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

20

MR. MARKS:

Right.

Because what happens when you get

21

mail-in or absentee ballot requests, they normally go into

22

a batch.

23

will actually allow them to do a one-off and use a little,

24

you know, like desktop label printer that prints one label

25

at a time.

This -- we recently implemented a change that
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1

So if somebody comes into their office and wants

2

to request a mail-in ballot in-person, voted, and return

3

it, they can easily just do that one-off and not have to go

4

look through a batch to pull that one out to print the

5

label.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6

Gotcha.

Some of that

7

was done in satellite offices in 2021, I don't think any

8

county operated any satellite offices because of the

9

expense per my recollection.

10

MR. MARKS:

Is that -

I would have to doublecheck.

11

know for sure, but I don't believe.

12

as many as the -

13

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

14

MR. MARKS:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

I don't

There's certainly not

Right.

-- previous election.
In 2 022, I haven't

16

heard of any.

17

time when they're looking to do that to the Department?

18

Do counties have to submit a plan ahead of

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

We send out a survey.

We ask

19

counties to provide the locations, the times, you know,

20

details about each one because we also want to, you know,

21

put that information on our website so that voters don't

22

have to go to each individual county to figure out which

23

ones.

24

submitted with that survey as well.

25

And yes, we ask for details about those plans be

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Okay.

The new SURE
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1

system has a GIS component, if I ’m not mistaken.

2

MR. MARKS:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

It does.
Helps with district

4

boundaries.

5

assessments offices also have GIS.

6

to utilize county assessment offices to do voter

7

registration checks?

8

card comes in, it’s actually a zoned industrial site has

9

happened and they’re able to kind of connect and work with

I ’m also thinking assess -- most county
Will counties be able

I ’m thinking if a voter registration

10

their assessment office pops up as industrial site, they

11

can do further investigation into that to make sure it’s a

12

legitimate voter registration.

13

component moving forward?

14

MR. MARKS:

Is that an envision of that

Well, certainly the, you know, the

15

GIS component, I mean, you know, what we were primarily

16

envisioning was giving counties additional tools to

17

identify voter addresses.

18

street range, you know, house number ranges, et cetera.

19

And also, it would help with redistricting, reapportionment

20

of local precincts, so that they would actually be able to

21

maintain the boundaries in there.

22

Right now, it’s just blocks and

But yes, there are, you know, potential uses

23

beyond that. You know, most counties have a GIS department.

24

They have a planning department of something.

25

certainly, they’d be able to feed data, you know, to and

And
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1

from those entities that currently support them now.

2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Okay.

That's good to

3

know.

4

there's some national news reports on paper ballot

5

shortages.

You mentioned monitoring external issues.

6

MR. MARKS:

7

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

8

Yes.
And when you have an

entire system predicated on paper ballot shortages -

9

MR. MARKS:

Right.

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

10
11

I know

-- we've had issues in

previous elections of counties not printing enough for -

12

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

13

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

—

for voters in the

14

previous primary election.

15

getting ballots, ensuring we have enough for voters in the

16

primary election?

17

MR. MARKS:

Yes.

So kind of where are we at with

So we have been monitoring

18

that.

19

were having issues.

20

supplies absentee balloting materials and mail-in balloting

21

materials to a significant number of counties that are all

22

smaller counties, but they were having an issue.

23

know, ultimately, they were able to resolve it with their

24

supplier.

25

currently having issues getting an adequate number of

We surveyed the counties to find out if any counties
We did have one vendor that actually

We, you

So we're not aware of any counties that are

122

1
2

supplies.
We have told counties and this will be my

3

confessional, we have told counties that the current

4

thresholds in the statute should be a floor not a ceiling

5

for counties.

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

7

MR. MARKS:

8

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MR. MARKS:

Thank you.

I know there is legislation -
Thank you.

-- that has been proposed that would

10

correct that.

11

today, I ’m not aware of any supply chain issues or other

12

issues that will impact, adversely impact counties’ ability

13

to supply balloting materials both for mail-in and

14

absentee, as well as, Election Day ballots.

15

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

So yes, we, you know, I -- as I sit here

Yeah, because I think

16

both Republican and Democrat ballots w e ’ve got a large

17

number of candidates, so we should have pretty high turnout

18
19

MR. MARKS:

20

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yes.
—

this election cycle.

21

Which also brings me to how many pages ballots will be.

22

I ’m trying to think, nine Republican Governor candidates, a

23

number of Senate candidates both sides.

24

looking at as far as kind of the length of the ballot

25

possibly two pages and so forth?

What are you
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1

MR. MARKS:

I don’t -- I think there’s a low

2

probability that it will be two pages.

3

fill up front and back of one page.

4

know, may have to use a slightly larger ballot stocks, the

5

stock there are different sizes.

6

It will certainly

Some counties, you

You know, the most extreme example, you know,

7

maybe, you know, Philadelphia County, you know, that has -

8

they’ll have a lot of things on the ballot and then they

9

actually have home rule charter questions and they can put

10

them on the ballot in any election.

11

municipal elections.

12

now that believes it’s going to have a two page ballot,

13

though it may be a fairly crowded one page front and back

14

ballot.

15

It’s not limited to

But I ’m not aware of any county right

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Okay.

Speaking of

16

ballots, w e ’ve had counties with ballot issues.

17

the issue in Berks County where dates were wrong, sending

18

out to Hispanic voters.

19

of ballots being misprinted. I think someone was talking

20

yesterday of a county that had it was a Republican ballot

21

last primary, but it was titled Democrat party ballot with

22

all Republican candidates.

W e ’ve had issues in Fayette County

23

MR. MARKS:

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

W e ’ve had

Right.
How are you working

with counties to prevent kind of those issues, even to the
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1

tune, I think York County had an issue where we had

2

Shrewsbury Borough, Shrewsbury Township, it’s all

3

Shrewsbury, they had a gentleman who was on both Shrewsbury

4

Borough and Shrewsbury Township for a constable position

5

which -

6

MR. MARKS:

7

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.
-- is basically an

8

illegal.

9

was -- I think it ended up being the county accidentally

10

He was -- he got a letter sent from the DA.

put him on both ballots.

11

MR. MARKS:

12

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

13

It

Right.
How are we addressing

kind of those localized ballot issues?

14

MR. MARKS:

Yeah, it’s, you know, it’s an

15

interesting question.

16

samples and we review those ballot samples, but in a

17

municipal election, I mean, we have 9,300 precincts and we

18

have precinct level races.

We don’t have enough staff to

19

review all 9,300 ballots.

So you see some of these things

20

in local, you know, local races in particular.

21

We do ask counties for ballot

We do have the Berks County issue extremely

22

unfortunate, but we do, we are working with Berks County

23

and other counties through our language access work group.

24

Berks County’s Election Director is a member of that work

25

group.

They’re certainly aware of that error and the
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1

Department is willing and is always willing to, you know,

2

we don’t have a ton of resources either, but we also want

3

to make sure mistakes aren’t made.
And to the extent that it’s helpful, we are

4
5

always willing to review county’s materials.

6

even translated materials because, you know, we do

7

translations ourselves working with statewide contractors

8

who provide those services.

You know,

So, you know, we try to support the counties and

9
10

we encourage them to come to us if they’re unsure about

11

something.

12

You know, we certainly did some training with counties

13

after that initially occurred and, you know, kind of went

14

through and learned from each county like how do you do

15

that?

16

for election?

17

put the term on there.

18

four-year term?

19

all of that and, you know, we were able to provide some

20

best practices on how you make sure that you’re organized

21

and you’re getting information.

22

get the information timely from their local, you know,

23

because I guess the secretary of each borough has to submit

I don’t know how you solve the local problem.

How do you verify which borough council seats are up
What the correct term is because you have to
Is it a two-year term?

Is it a six-year term?

Is it a

And we reviewed

In some cases, they don’t

24
25

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yeah, it’s the

126

1

solicitor, yeah.

2

MR. MARKS:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

4

MR. MARKS:

-- information to -- right.
Yeah.

It's a, you know, it's a messy

5

process to start with.

6

with, you know, I don't know that SURE modernization is

7

going to be a magic bullet for that either, but, you know,

8

one component of SURE is that, the new SURE system is it

9

will have the ability to pull in ballot definitions for

10

So, you know, I'm hopeful that

local offices as well.
And we're trying to work counties through that

11
12

right now.

13

told them, I said, look, this -- and this body has

14

previously offered legislation that would require the

15

Department to become a clearinghouse for not only State and

16

Federal Office Election Returns, but also for local.

They're not super happy about that, but I've

17

So that day is probably going to come.

18

lot of jurisdictions across this country where you can to

19

one single location and if you want to see the election

20

results for dog catcher and Congress on the same page, you

21

can do it.

22

of this jurisdictions as well.

23

There's a

And there's no reason Pennsylvania can't be one

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yeah.

And it's —

it

24

comes up because you're viewed as the oversight of county

25

elections and it's really not that in the statute.

You are
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1

advised consent.

You have your role, obviously.

2

MR. MARKS:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.
The domain of the SURE

4

system is in your bailiwick to provide uniformity among

5

that, but there’s no one really out there that has direct

6

oversight and dealing with this.

7

that up because it goes to the next question.
I mean, w e ’ve had to threaten impeachment of two

8
9

And, you know, I bring

boards of elections for kind of going rogue on their

10

interpretation of the election code which we, the

11

Department and us were on the same page length of both

12

those instances.

13

I ’m a little frustrated with the Attorney General getting

14

involved in that case, but it is what it is.

One is still an active court case which

How do we stop that from happening because it’s a

15
16

great frustration.

There’s, you know, I -- look,

17

Representative Diamond brought up the Montgomery County

18

case.

19

individual, one household means one individual, not the

20

entire nursing home of delivery of ballots -

I think it’s pretty much an understanding that one

21

MR. MARKS:

22

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.
—

and stuff like that.

23

But you have one county coming back and saying I don’t like

24

that interpretation, w e ’re doing our own thing.

25

again, it goes back to uniformity of that constitutional

Which
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1

mechanism of uniformity that constitutional mechanism of

2

uniformity.

3

MR. MARKS:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.
You know and I don’t -

5

like we don’t have the patience, we don’t have the time.

6

can’t -- we can’t threaten impeachment of every single

7

person doing their own thing.

8

got to stop.

But at the same time, it’s

So what’s that process and what’s the -

MR. MARKS:

9

Yeah.

So, you know, modernization of

10

the technology will certainly help, but it’s not going to

11

solve all of those problems because they’re underlying

12

problems.

13

And one of those problems is and you heard this

14

from the Joint State Government Commission testifiers, we

15

have an election code that is old.

16

great election reforms with Act 77, but we still have an

17

election code that’s largely written in 1937 and it has,

18

you know, you talked about long-term care facilities.

19

I

Yes, we made a lot of

And I think, Yvonne testified about this.

The

20

problem with the current provision, there is actually a

21

process where you would have a bipartisan board that would

22

go out before Election Day, it would be completely

23

transparent.

24

They, you know, the Board would canvass them and all of

25

that goes back to the County Board of Elections.

Voters can cast their absentee ballots.
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1

The problem is, the election code is again, very

2

prescriptive and it only applies to homes owned by the

3

counties and it uses old language and I think it still has

4

-- that might be the section that has the poor house

5

language in it.

6

You know, the election code needs to be

7

modernized, too.

8

these problems, you know.

9

willing to work with the legislature on some of these

Technology is not going to solve all of
And, you know, we are certainly

10

things that are really, you know, it’s not that they were

11

bad, they were just -- they made sense 85 year ago, they

12

don’t make sense in 2022.

13

one example.

14

The world has changed and that’s

You know, that a simple update that would allow

15

any long-term care facility whether owned by a county, the

16

state, or, you know, a private entity that runs a long-term

17

care facility put this procedure in place where you have an

18

independent board, there’s transparency.

19

give people a lot more confidence in the process.

20

no evidence that there’s any widespread fraud occurring in

21

these locations, but I understand why people are concerned

22

about it because it’s not, to them, it’s not completely

23

transparent and I think that’s an easy fix.

24

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

25

Okay.

I think that will
There’s

Kind of going

back to guidance, obviously, with Representative Diamond,
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1

you went through no new or changed guidance heading into

2

the primary election.

3

doing any changes on guidance for counties?
MR. MARKS:

4

Post-primary are you looking at

I don't anticipate that we're going

5

to make substantive changes to our guidance.

6

always careful to not overpromise.

7

the primary, you know, or if the court as I said rules and

8

the status quo changes, we're going to have to respond to

9

it.

10

You know, I'm

If something occurs in

So, you know, at this point, we don't expect to

11

make any substantive changes to our guidance.

12

may simplify language.

13

always looking at it, okay, does it make sense?

14

everyone understand it?

15

questions from a lot of counties and they don't seem clear

16

on it, then we may need to update it.

17

any substantive changes, unless again, there are changes to

18

the statute or there's some issue that crops up during the

19

primary that we didn't foresee that requires us to issue

20

additional guidance.

21

You know, we

We're always doing that.

We're
Does

You know, if we get a lot of

But I don't foresee

You know, 2020 was a perfect example.

You know,

22

I mentioned the litigation, but the biggest thing that

23

changed the status quo was COVID-19.

24

you're looking at running elections in the middle of a

25

global pandemic.

You know, suddenly,

That was new for all of us.

It was new
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1

for the counties and it was new for the Department and we

2

had to, you know, we had to do a lot of hard work in a very

3

short period of time to put out guidance that would help

4

protect voters while at the same time allowing them to

5

exercise their constitutional right to vote.

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Gotcha.

And I know, I

7

think ELAB has had discussions with this.

8

had discussions with this on instead of having guidance

9

doing manuals for elections directors -

10

MR. MARKS:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

I think w e ’ve

Yeah.
-- everybody, that way,

12

and it’s two prong, right?

You have unified procedures

13

across all counties throughout the entire election process.

14

So you have uniformity.

15

expectations.

You have a benchmark for training

16

MR. MARKS:

17

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Right.
And two, at the end of

18

the day, you have accountability, right?

And I know is

19

that something -- based on conversation,

I think that’s

20

something the Administration -

21

MR. MARKS:

22

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

23
24
25

Yes.
-- Department would

like to do.
MR. MARKS:

No, we support that and our, you

know, I ’ll put in a shameless plus for our budget request.
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1

I mean, that's something that we addressed in our budget

2

request this year.

3

committed to training, writing training materials, writing

4

manuals, and also providing training to counties.

We want to bring on staff that will be

Right now, not whining, I just, I don't have

5
6

enough staff to do all of those things.

7

filing, we had people from all over the Department

8

volunteering in order to get through that and they did

9

great.

10

Running petition

But, you know, we certainly support that.

We want

to have, you know, a training program.

11

And I think we're even supportive, you know,

12

depending on the details of putting something more formal

13

in place that county commissioners can then require their,

14

you know, if you're going to serve as an election director

15

or assistant director, you have to go through this training

16

program and be certified as completing it.

17

Department would love to provide those things, but we need

18

the resources to do that.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

19
20
21

Yeah.

And the

Representative

Keefer?
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Thank you. I just wanted

22

to follow-up because I've just done so much research on

23

this and I thought I knew I had the information somewhere.

24
25

But regarding the removal of deceased voters.
I'm going to go to the national, so we have the National

So
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1

Voter Registration Act first.

And under that one, I ’ll

2

bring that up, it says specifically, there’s section, I

3

think it’s Paragraph 4.

4

it says that the State shall conduct a general program that

5

makes reasonable effort to remove the names of ineligible

6

voters from the official lists of eligible voters by reason

7

of death of the registrant or and then they to go to change

8

of residencies or some other things.

9

enabling at the Federal level.

It’s (A)(4).

And under that one

So that’s the

And then if you go to Pennsylvania’s actual

10
11

statute, that one switches -- in the Pennsylvania statute

12

it says, and that is under Section 1505(a), the Department

13

of Health, a commission shall cancel the registration of a

14

registered elector reported dead by the Department of

15

Health.

16

receiving the notice of the death of an individual 18 years

17

or older, send the name, address of residence of the

18

individual to the Commission in a manner and on a form

19

prescribed by the Department.

20

promptly update the information contained in its

21

registration records.

The Department of Health shall within 60 days of

The Commission shall

So it looks like this is not something that would

22
23

take legislative -- that would require legislation to

24

change.

25

MR. MARKS:

Actually, our counsel -- and this has
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1

actually been the interpretation of the Department across

2

multiple administrations.

3

authorize the use of sources beyond what’s named in the

4

election code.

5
6
7

That our election code does not

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

So I understand that.

you -
MR. MARKS:

We do get the Department of Health

8

data and we actually provide that data to counties on a

9

biweekly basis.

So every two weeks, w e ’re sending

10

Department of Health data across.

11

sources are obituaries and letters testamentary,

12

is the statutory language.

13

So

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

But the only other two

Right.

I believe

I led —

I read

14

that and it said any program that the State develops, as

15

well as, one of the marks that’s in there as well.

16

So I ’ll follow-up in writing on that because I

17

would just like to just given the broad interpretation of

18

some of the other areas and then that this is a hinderance

19

doesn’t make any sense.

20

MR. MARKS:

Yeah, Representative,

I, you know, I

21

agree as an administrator,

22

been the interpretation as I said across multiple

23

administrations.

I want to use it, but that’s

24

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

25

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you.
Back to guidance.

The
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1

Department has issued guidance for voter ID requirements

2

for counties.

3

It’s been active guidance.

It’s May 2015.

Can you just -- this is just a follow-up

4

question, I don’t need an answer now, but can you provide

5

over the past seven years since that guidance has been in,

6

how many complaints, lawsuits, has the State been involved

7

in or aware of dealing with the current voter ID

8

requirements?
Further, if we could get the, kind of a breakdown

9
10

by county.

11

race data on voters, but new voters coming in.

12

many new voters have come in by year since 2015, where

13

they’re from county-wise, and any ethnicity data you have

14

on that would be very helpful.

15

MR. MARKS:

And I don’t know if you have kind of ethnicity
Like how

I will say, yes, I ’ll talk to our

16

staff and w e ’ll get back to you on that request.

17

say that the ethnicity data is an optional field so -

18

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

19

MR. MARKS:

would probably be incomplete data.

21

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

22

MR. MARKS:

24
25

Okay.

-- if voters choose not to -- so it

20

23

I will

Right.

But certainly happy to get back to

you on that.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:
complaints.

Yeah, okay.

Election

Under HAVA, the Department’s required to
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1

operate an election complaint line where voters report

2

issues up to the Department.

3

process works and whether that voter ever gets anything

4

back.

5

get, we looked at it, it wasn’t an issue.

Can you review how that

Oh, yeah, I saw this, I called.

Do they actually

Two, is that something that is publicly out

6
7

there?

Is there like -- is there a final report, here’s

8

the issues that w e ’ve had, this is how we resolved them.

9

And I think w e ’ve discussed this before, the DA gets some

10

of them, so some of them would be forwarded to the DA and

11

that would fall under an investigation realm, but is there

12
13

MR. MARKS:

14

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

15

Yeah.
-- public information

on some of that stuff?
MR. MARKS:

16

Well, there’s two different

17

processes.

18

So when we get a HAVA, it’s the HAVA Title 3 complaint.

19

And it’s very narrow things that you can file a complaint

20

on and those are things that are contained in the Help

21

America Vote Act, Title 3 of the Help America Vote Act.

22

We don’t necessarily publish each complaint.

So in a lot of cases, if we get a general

23

complaint about something that happened at a polling place,

24

if it isn’t about accessibility, or accessibility of the

25

voting machines, or some other Title 3 provision, that kind
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1
2

of gets shipped over.
And then you mentioned the DA's.

We also have a

3

complaint form online that goes directly to the counties.

4

So you can go online.

5

Pennsylvania,

6

that information gets forwarded to the County Election

7

Board and the DA for their investigation.

8
9

If you're a registered voter in

fill out, you know, a form, a web form and

HAVA Title 3 complaints, we have an
administrative process. The Department is required and this

10

is what we do on a regular basis, within a certain number

11

of days, we have to respond to the Complainant and let them

12

know that we're addressing their complaint.

13

there's a certain other number of days within which we have

14

to review that complaint.

15

And then

And if it is a complaint about a county official

16

or a precinct official then we have to, you know, contact

17

and we try to resolve the issue.

18

through those communications, then we would hold -- we'd

19

basically have a hearing on the issue and make a

20

determination.

If it can't be resolved

21

It very rarely gets to that last piece.

22

what happens is somebody will complain, we reach out to the

23

county, we talk to the county and we talk to the

24

Complainant, and the county will make some accommodation or

25

make some change to their procedure that satisfies the

Usually,
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1

Complainant that moving forward this is not going to be an

2

issue again.

3

So that’s generally how the process works.

We

4

have a complaint procedure document that I can provide if

5

it’s helpful.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

6
7

to see that.

That would be helpful.

Going back to registration of deceased

8
9

Yeah, it would be good

individuals.

I ran into the Delaware County DA, I think

10

last summer in the cafeteria.

11

and we had a discussion about his investigation into a

12

gentleman in the 2020 election who registered his deceased

13

mother, later tried to vote and it was stopped ahead of

14

time which is a good thing.

He was up doing some stuff

The problem and my frustration I allayed to him

15
16

is it should have stopped at the voter registration

17

process.

18

in Delaware County overrode a hit on a deceased match which

19

is very frustrating because it should have -- it was never

20

investigated and never moved past that point.

21

And he told me that the voter registration clerk

And again, the Department doesn’t have the

22

ability to really oversee or enforce anything, so it’s

23

relied on those County Boards of Elections to do that.

24

Is that something the new SURE system -- are

25

there precautions in there that if we have an affirmative
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1

match on a deceased individual, it’s not a simple clerk

2

override.

3

some due diligence to make sure it doesn’t happen.

4

that’s the frustrating part -

5

MR. MARKS:

6

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Like it has to be investigated.

There has to be

Yeah.
-- it should have

7

stopped then.

8

conviction on an attempted voter registration -

9
10
11

You know,

MR. MARKS:

Because

it should have been a

Yeah.

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

-- not attempted

voting.

12

MR. MARKS:

Right.

We actually made changes

13

to the current system after that to make it a hard stop

14

so that it was,

15

the county will still have the ability to resolve the

16

issue.

17

the power to take that away.

18

c o u n t y ’s discretion,

19

those matches that -- w e ’re hopeful and will result in

20

the county taking those additional steps that t h e y ’re

21

required to take to identify why t h a t ’s coming back as

22

a deceased match.

23

you know,

you have to then -- you -

We d i d n ’t take that away because we d o n ’t have
T h a t ’s within the

but we did provide a hard stop on

So we did make changes in the short-term and,
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1

you know, w e ’ll have similar process in the new SURE

2

system as well.

3

want to be careful.

4

away counties ability to address things within their

5

statutory discretion,

6

through the hoops,

7

use systematically so that t h e y ’re reminded that they

8

have to do their due diligence before they move

9

forward.

10

You know, but again,

we,

you know, we

We ultimately d o n ’t want to take

but we can certainly make them go

you know, maybe is the best term to

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

My last

11

question.

12

Stein settlement which I ’ll say requires a "more

13

rigorous",

14

the top of

15

2022 .

16

Post-election audits.

Okay.

We have the Jill

I d o n ’t know what the exact language is off
my head in that post-election audits by

This Committee advanced Speaker K e l l e r ’s post

17

election audit bill,

as well as, provided post

18

election,

19

1800.

20

have to complete their 2 percent audit,

21

-- I call it 2 percent audit,

22

and then we have the Dep a r t m e n t ’s Risk Limiting Audit

23

pilot which,

new post-election audit processes in 1300 and

Obviously,

the primary election,

counties will
their statutory

their statutory audit,

I guess i t ’s kind of optional at this
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1

point because i t ’s not like t h e r e ’s a -

2

MR. MARKS:

Yeah.

3

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

-- enforcement

4

mechanism to do it.

I assume most counties are

5

completing with it.

Have you hit all 67 yet?

6

MR. MARKS:

7

We have, but not all in the same

election.

8

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

9

MR. MARKS:

10

We had 65 in one election and I

think we had 63 in another election.

11

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

12

MR. MARKS:

13

number -
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

15

MR. MARKS:

17

Right.

But they w e r e n ’t the same

14

16

Gotcha.

Right.

-- of counties that d i d n ’t

participate.
MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

So over the next

18

year, we have the issue of settlement which I d o n ’t

19

think necessarily mandates the change, but at the same

20

time, how are we working through that?

21

obviously, w e ’ll need legislation to -

22

MR. MARKS:

23

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Because

Right.
-- get rid of the 2
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1

percent.

2

else -

There's,

I think,

an interest to do something

3

MR. MARKS:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5

Right.
-- more substantive,

so.

6

MR. MARKS:

We're actually working right now

7

with the post-election audit workgroup.

8

primarily made up of county election officials.

9

a meeting yesterday as a matter of fact.

This is
We had

And we will

10

be writing a final report and that report will include

11

the workgroup's recommendations for what pr e 

12

certification post-election audit looks like.

13

-- we anticipate that we will be releasing that before

14

the budget is due,

15

earlier than June 30th.

16

know,

17

at it and consider those recommendations,

18

And our

so on or about June 30, perhaps
Because I understand that,

you

we want to give the General Assembly time to look

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Yeah.

so.
And it just

19

goes back to my -- we've had a lot of discussion of

20

where we're onboard with stuff.

21

1300 again.

22

with.

23

The frustration is not closing out that final 10

Like and I look at

90 percent of that stuff we're all onboard

I like am just throwing out a number percentage.
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1
2

percent to actually move forward with stuff.
We've had plenty of conversations and I look

3

back at the issues counties have had in 2021, the

4

primary election,

5

there's not major problems in the upcoming election

6

that we have to back and deal with.

7

the general election.

Hopefully,

But again, most of this stuff would have been

8

resolved by a global agreement and going back,

9

old language that is just ancient and needs updated.

10

You know,

updating

the frustration from my level of

11

looking at this and knowing we're so close to a

12

solution and just not having -- not the Department,

13

at the Governor level willingness to go through and

14

work through some of this stuff.

15

I know there is language shared.

but

I've seen

16

some of the language.

17

not that far apart of and I actually have applauded

18

some language whoever in the administration put

19

together and stuff on this stuff.

20

need to fix some of this stuff.

21

We're not opposed to funding.

22

lot of stuff people have been asking for, but we need a

23

final conclusion on some of this stuff.

You know,

audit stuff.

But,

We're

you know, we

Counties need help.
We're not opposed to a

It's not going
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1

to happen for the primary,

2

election,

3

potentially from some changes, but,

4

that other two way street.

5

maybe.

we know that.

General

2023 another primary year,
you know,

we need

So if there’s anything to go back to the front

6

office, I call them the front office,

we still want to

7

work on it.

8

still have a lot of issues and we’ve covered tons of

9

issues and we’ve covered tons of ways we agree on

We still want to get things done.

10

trying to address issues.

11

pieces in place to be able to do it.

We

We just need that final

12

So t h a t ’s my big ask to go back and say we

13

need to engage in conversations to close this stuff

14

out.

15

MR. MARKS:

16

to the Secretary and others.

17
18

As always, I ’ll relay your message

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:
further questions,

19

comments?

Chairman,

21

me Acing Chairman for the day,

23

just quickly.

Sir,

Any

Closing remarks?

ACTING DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN WEBSTER:

20

22

Appreciate it.

Yes, Mr.

And a little dangerous making
so.

I would heartedly recommend that we work

together on that last 10 percent because I think
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1

t h e r e ’s ideas on the other side of the aisle, minority

2

party who would jump in to help resolve those last 10

3

percent on a lot of these voting things.

4

So I ’m probably speaking out of turn for my

5

level in the group, but as Acting Chairman,

6

make that commitment.

7

I would

A couple of comments because I think we spent

8

two and a half hours this morning in a really

9

interesting place,

talking about principles and maybe

10

some specific tenants when w e ’re talking about

11

canvassing.

12

talked about funding issues and those kinds of things.

13

And then,

14

at the end and I -- some of this I agree with and some

15

I ’ll be a little prescriptive about.

We talked about process controls and we

and maybe we muddied the water a little bit

16

We asked you in a modern technology world to

17

share data or get involved with updated technology by

18

connecting to ERIC or by integrating with GIS systems

19

in a countywide.

20

responding a little bit to Representative D i a m o n d ’s

21

world,

22

incensed when my private data is used across t o d a y ’s

23

modern internet and data environments.

I get,

And I have to admit,

and this is

and I think the word was incensed,

I get
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1

And the one that I would laugh about is about

2

three years ago,

3

right?

4

computer today and demonstrate this,

5

to a hardware store site and will get popup dress

6

sites,

7

you know,

8
9

I purchased a dress for my wife,

I purchased a dress and so I could go on a

right?

right?

I can go

So someone is sharing my data across,

across functions.
But what concerned me is that outrage.

Where

we want you to be proactive in certain technology

10

environments,

11

this public perception of trust which is where we

12

started this hearing this morning.

13

Department of State did was actually reach out to a

14

voter and proactively give them information about

15

how -- about getting access to the voting booth.

16

but the issue that was spinning is around

And what the

And so I didn’ t want to -- and I think it’ s

17

important that we not muddy the water when we can talk

18

about those things we agree with or the 10 percent of

19

voting law that we still need to contend with that we

20

not fall back into using that public trust or diffusing

21

that public trust.

22

elections were difficult and complicated and that

23

counties had,

W e ’re close.

you know,

We know that the last

diversity in how they do
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1

things,

2

and procedures that our electrics -- our election

3

services people did everything possible and at the end,

4

the outcomes were verifiable.

5

but in the end, we also know that the processes

So I think it truly important to get to the

6

essence of public trust and indicate that from a

7

leadership level that we can do this.

8

it for however many hundreds of years and we are now

9

facing modern technologies and differences in the way

10

population growth has occurred,

11

there.

12

So, Mr. Chairman,

And w e ’ve done

but w e ’re going to get

I would close with sort of

13

that positive statement and appreciate your testimony

14

today very much.

Thank you.

15

MR. MARKS:

16

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

Thank you.
I appreciate it.

17

Always a pleasure.

18

come in and it’s a great dialogue back-and-forth and I

19

think all the Members really appreciate the ability of the

20

Department to come in and just address concerns.

21

from constituents and counties, so we appreciate -

I appreciate your thoughts when you

22

MR. MARKS:

23

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

24

We hear

Understood.

Department does and your time today.

-- the work the

148

1

MR. MARKS:

2

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

3

MR. MARKS:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRMAN GROVE:

5
6
7

Yeah.
That -

We hear from them, too.
—

will do.

we are adjourned.
MR. MARKS:

Thank you.

(The hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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